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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good afternoon,

          3  and welcome to this meeting on the New York City

          4  Council's Committee on Contracts. My name is Robert

          5  Jackson. I'm the Chair of the Committee.

          6                 We will be discussing a package of

          7  bills today regarding the environmental impact of

          8  City purchasing, particularly as it relates to the

          9  health and safety of City workers and residents.

         10                 The package represents a significant

         11  and comprehensive effort to ensure that the City

         12  takes these issues into account in the procurement

         13  process.

         14                 In almost every category of goods,

         15  there will be some products that are environmentally

         16  preferable to others. In many instances, there is

         17  little or no cost associated with the

         18  environmentally preferable option. Often it is

         19  simply a matter of identifying and seeking out these

         20  products.

         21                 For example, we all know that

         22  recycled paper pretty much costs the same as

         23  non-recyclable paper.

         24                 The bills we will be discussing today

         25  will take New York City from the back of the pack to
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          2  the forefront of environmental and health

          3  purchasing.

          4                 And given that the City spends

          5  billions of dollars on goods and construction each

          6  year, changes to what City agencies use will have a

          7  deep impact on the City's environment and on the

          8  health and safety of all New Yorkers.

          9                 The linchpin of this legislative

         10  package is Intro. 534-A, a bill that establishes a

         11  Citywide Environmental Procurement Director to

         12  implement and update the environmental and health

         13  standards detailed in the rest of the bills.

         14                 The Director will also be charged

         15  with establishing additional standards according to

         16  criteria outlined in the legislation and will

         17  coordinate with City agencies to ensure compliance

         18  with the legislation.

         19                 The four other bills set the minimum

         20  standards that this office will implement.

         21                 For the sake of time, I won't go into

         22  detail, but just briefly mention each one.

         23                 Proposed Intro. 536-A revises and

         24  revamps the Energy Star Bill passed by the New York

         25  City Council in 2003.
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          2                 Under this new bill, any

          3  energy-consuming goods used by City agencies will

          4  have to be Energy Star certified and meet

          5  energy-efficiency recommendations that are

          6  established by the federal energy management

          7  program, or federal agencies.

          8                 Their legislation also requires the

          9  City to use computers with advanced energy-saving

         10  features.

         11                 Intro. 545-A updates the City's laws

         12  regarding the use of recyclable material. The City

         13  will be required to abide by EPA's guidelines for

         14  the minimum recycled content of a wide range of

         15  goods.

         16                 The bill also requires that the City

         17  new printers and photocopiers be capable of

         18  double-siding, and be set to do so by default.

         19                 Intro. 544-A regulates the City's use

         20  of goods that contains hazardous materials. The bill

         21  requires that the City only use building products

         22  like carpets and paints, which release low

         23  quantities of toxic fumes.

         24                 The bill also requires that the City

         25  begin only using electronic equipment that has
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          2  reduced levels of toxic materials commonly found in

          3  such equipment, including lead, mercury and cadmium.

          4                 Finally, Intro. 552-A prohibits the

          5  City from applying cleaning and other custodial

          6  products to City-owned or leased properties, unless

          7  the products meet certain environmental and health

          8  requirements.

          9                 Agencies are also required to make

         10  best efforts to use products that are produced from

         11  bio-based materials and are sold in containers that

         12  reduce worker exposure to the chemicals contained in

         13  the products.

         14                 All of the bills discussed today

         15  apply not only to City agencies, but to also to

         16  contractors in the fulfillment of contracts with

         17  City agencies, and require an annual report on

         18  compliance.

         19                 I am looking forward to a good

         20  discussion of the bills today.

         21                 And before we begin with any

         22  witnesses, let me introduce other members of the

         23  Committee that are here, and my other colleagues.

         24                 We have Dr. Kendall Stewart who is on

         25  the Contracts Committee. He's from Brooklyn. Joe
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          2  Addabbo from Queens, and Jim Gennaro from Queens.

          3                 And Jim, would you like to say a few

          4  words before we begin?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman. Thank you for your leadership on this

          7  issue by bringing this host of bills forward.

          8                 I am lead sponsor on Intro. 536-A,

          9  and I'm also a sponsor of the other bills before us

         10  today, and it's critically important through 536

         11  that we buy the most energy-efficient office

         12  products that we possibly can. And I'm happy that

         13  you're hearing this bill and hearing it with other

         14  related bills, and hopefully we will have a very

         15  constructive dialogue with the people who are in

         16  support of these bills and also that might have some

         17  issues with them so that we can get whatever kinks

         18  that may be in any of these bills, you know, ironed

         19  out and move them forward.

         20                 So, Mr. Chairman, thank you for

         21  having this hearing, and I look forward to it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         23                 With that, we would like to call the

         24  first witness. Marla Simpson, New York City's Chief

         25  Procurement Officer, with the Mayor's Office of
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          2  Contract Services.

          3                 Good afternoon, Marla. How are you?

          4                 MS. SIMPSON: Great, Mr. Chairman.

          5  Nice to see you again.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Nice to see you.

          7  Welcome.

          8                 MS. SIMPSON: Good afternoon, Mr.

          9  Chairman, members of the Committee. I'm delighted to

         10  be here again to discuss this package of bills and

         11  to report to you on our continuing success, in

         12  promoting both the principals of sustainability, and

         13  procurement reform throughout the City.

         14                 We appreciate the fact that the A

         15  versions of the bills which are being held today

         16  have begun to address several of the concerns that

         17  we have raised with you in prior hearings and as

         18  well with your staff in a series of meetings.

         19                 The issues that I will speak to today

         20  fall mainly into about four categories. One is the

         21  changes still necessary to put us in compliance and

         22  in conformity with State law.

         23                 Second area of concern is the need to

         24  narrow the scope of some of the provisions that we

         25  believe are too sweeping, in terms of what they
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          2  bring in at this stage.

          3                 The third is, again, for some of the

          4  provisions, the need for an opportunity to test the

          5  proposed standards or standards that we would

          6  promulgate in a pilot setting, as was done in

          7  virtually all of the other jurisdictions that have

          8  addressed environmentally preferable purchasing.

          9                 And the fourth area is the need for

         10  greater flexibility in the standard setting process

         11  and in compliance monitoring.

         12                 Just as an overview, I'd like to

         13  bring you up to date on some of the data concerning

         14  our procurement volumes for Fiscal 2005 so we set

         15  the context for these reforms.

         16                 In Fiscal '05, the City's total

         17  procurement volume for Mayoral agencies was $11.4

         18  billion. Of that, about 650 million was comprised of

         19  goods purchases, and about 3.3 billion of

         20  construction. But that really only gives part of the

         21  picture.

         22                 In that procurement volume, we

         23  include about 30,000 purchases in the micropurchase

         24  category, which is 5,000 and below. About 15,000

         25  purchases in the small category, which 100,000 and

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  below, and about 2,000 purchases in the category of

          3  contracts ranging up to a million dollars.

          4                 In construction, for example, we have

          5  a significant number, about $300 million worth of

          6  contracts that fall at or about a million dollars,

          7  and in our large construction arena, our larger

          8  contracts generate more than 7,000 subcontracts, and

          9  of those, about 6,600 of them fall below a million

         10  dollars.

         11                 So, all of that territory, again,

         12  that is encompassed by these bills, is a very

         13  significant universe and one that I've discussed

         14  with this Committee in some of your prior hearings.

         15  And I want to point out that it's important that we

         16  not allow the goals of today's bill to work in cross

         17  purposes for some of the other initiatives that we

         18  have discussed with you and that we continue to make

         19  progress on.

         20                 Chief among those would be the area

         21  recently covered by the Mayor's Executive Order 71,

         22  where we are about to inaugurate a goals-based

         23  program to increase utilization of minority and

         24  women-owned companies and other emerging small

         25  firms, especially for procurement that falls in the
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          2  million dollars and below range.

          3                 We are concerned that some of the

          4  detailed record-keeping burdens might have too great

          5  an impact on this emerging competitive universe, and

          6  we want to be sure that as we go forward we strike

          7  an appropriate balance between new regulations, new

          8  recordkeeping burdens and the goals that we're

          9  trying to achieve.

         10                 One area, obviously, where we have

         11  done substantial, made substantial progress on

         12  environmentally preferable purchasing, is in the

         13  goods arena.

         14                 DCAS, as you know, is the primary

         15  purchasing agency for the City's goods and

         16  commodities, and DCAS already has a very substantial

         17  environmentally preferable purchasing program that

         18  focuses on products that are energy efficient and

         19  that have significant recycled content.

         20                 We made significant progress toward

         21  the goal of this package of bills in DCAS's program

         22  last year.

         23                 As you will learn in the annual

         24  report when it is released in October, we have about

         25  $175 million worth of environmentally preferable
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          2  products, and that includes about $52 million of

          3  products with recycled content.

          4                 Just as one example, there is about a

          5  million and a half, million-point-six from the

          6  Staples Business Advantage Contract for office

          7  supplies, such as Post-Its and folders and plastic

          8  desk organizers.

          9                 DCAS also purchases a large number of

         10  energy-compliant, excuse me, Energy Star-compliant

         11  appliances and electronic goods, and a large number

         12  of alternate fuel vehicles.

         13                 What we would like to basically lead

         14  with in terms of describing the package of bills and

         15  the consequence to the City moving forward, is that

         16  we believe that a one-size-fits-all approach, which

         17  is the approach of most of these bills, is not

         18  appropriate or practical for a procurement universe

         19  as diverse as ours.

         20                 We do not believe it is appropriate

         21  either to enshrine all of the details in the

         22  legislation itself as opposed to allowing the

         23  standards to evolve.

         24                 DCAS and our other agencies conduct a

         25  tremendous amount of ongoing research on the
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          2  activities of other jurisdictions, on private sector

          3  trends, on the development of new products, and

          4  testing of new specifications. We would like to

          5  expand this program through these bills in

          6  partnership with the Council but we need to suggest

          7  significant modifications in order to do that.

          8                 We are pleased that these versions of

          9  the bill have linked the development of

         10  environmentally preferable standards and enforcement

         11  to the existing procurement oversight authority in

         12  the Mayoralty.

         13                 We would urge that you allow the

         14  Mayor's designee in addition to vary and adapt the

         15  standards so as to accommodate the different needs

         16  that our agencies have and to modify those standards

         17  as the science and research evolves over time.

         18                 We do oppose the incorporation by

         19  referenced of standards that are drawn from

         20  international bodies, non-New York governments and

         21  private sector organizations.

         22                 We believe that approach is unwise

         23  and in some instances violative of Section 16 of

         24  Article 3 of the State Constitution.

         25                 I would point out that there are
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          2  literally thousands of staff people involved in

          3  purchasing decisions in City government. We have

          4  similarly thousands of vendors who are enrolled to

          5  do business with us, and we are constantly trying to

          6  expand that pool.

          7                 It is important in that setting to

          8  keep our regulations as self-contained as possible

          9  and to make them ever more accessible and

         10  understandable to the public, not include fairly

         11  obscure cross-references to other legislation.

         12                 We do agree that it is entirely

         13  appropriate to consider the experience of other

         14  jurisdictions, but we believe it's important for the

         15  City to establish its own rules, the procurement

         16  scale and the complexity that we deal with is unique

         17  in the country.

         18                 There are no other jurisdictions that

         19  have taken precisely the route that is suggested by

         20  these bills, of both legislating the detail on the

         21  categories that would be covered and the precise

         22  standards in terms of enshrining them in stone in

         23  the bill.

         24                 Most of the jurisdictions that we

         25  have examined tested substantially more products
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          2  than they eventually adopted standards for, and many

          3  or most of them began their programs as a pilot

          4  approach or with a gradual phase-in.

          5                 The time that you gained from a pilot

          6  approach gives additional time to do in the field

          7  research, to work with employees to establish

          8  cooperation and buy-in and for each jurisdiction,

          9  including the City of New York, to be able to tailor

         10  the regulations to the climate, to the conditions,

         11  and indeed to the specific procurement rules that we

         12  operate under.

         13                 It is likely that as we test some of

         14  these categories we will not find products that work

         15  in all of the areas. So, flexibility on an ongoing

         16  basis is key to a successful program.

         17                 As you have heard us discussing both

         18  this context and others, we are also substantially

         19  constrained by State procurement law. General

         20  Municipal Law 103 and 104-B would permit us in some

         21  circumstances to utilize environmentally preferable

         22  specifications, however, it is important that we are

         23  able to show on an item-by-item basis that we

         24  continue to further the goal of state competitive

         25  bidding policy and rules.
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          2                 We would be happy to work with you on

          3  language to accomplish that goal through exemptions

          4  and the structure of the bill.

          5                 We also believe it would be prudent

          6  to exempt micro purchase those below $5,000 and

          7  small purchases up to $100,000, again because we are

          8  working to expand opportunity for new businesses to

          9  participate in that area, and we do not believe that

         10  the detailed tracking that would be required is cost

         11  beneficial, and we'd prefer to keep that a very

         12  fasttrack and streamlined process wherever possible.

         13                 Where there are small amounts of

         14  particular types of goods that are being purchased

         15  by the City, we believe it would be prudent to

         16  narrow the categories of new regulations so that we

         17  can spend our time and energy where the City's usage

         18  really is significant.

         19                 We believe the bill also contains an

         20  overly broad definition of contractor, and, again,

         21  we are concerned that the burdens may outweigh the

         22  benefits, particularly on the record-keeping front.

         23                 Despite our efforts, I'd like to

         24  remind everyone that the City has a great deal of

         25  trouble finding business partners and ensuring
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          2  adequate competition for much of our work, so we

          3  need to keep that in mind as we impose additional

          4  regulation.

          5                 We also cannot encompass leasing,

          6  which falls outside the procurement system. The City

          7  has to be able to find facilities in particular

          8  locations. We deal with a very tight real estate

          9  market and a very tight budget. Imposing standards

         10  on private owners in this situation could well

         11  result in substantially higher costs and far fewer

         12  owners that would be willing to deal with the City.

         13                 I'd like to turn to some specific

         14  issues, specific to individual bills at this point.

         15                 With the annual report that is

         16  described in Intro. 534-A, our tracking capacity on

         17  some of those categories is limited.

         18                 For example, with requirement

         19  contracts for multiple products, we are not

         20  necessarily able to break out on a model-by-model

         21  basis the purchasing volumes that occur in anything

         22  close to real time.

         23                 That kind of information, of course,

         24  can be looked at in an audit setting, and we can

         25  give you total dollar value under each given
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          2  contract, but that model-by-model detail is not

          3  always available.

          4                 We can certainly share data that we

          5  can get from vendors where that is practical, and we

          6  can give you the initial estimates that go into the

          7  requirement contract before it is solicited.

          8                 I'd also like to point out that for a

          9  variety of reasons, including the fact that we have

         10  to have a paper alternative to anything that we do

         11  electronically, the use of vendor catalogues is not

         12  a particularly practical option for us under State

         13  competitive bidding law, and the pragmatic

         14  constraints that we deal with.

         15                 Most of the products that would lend

         16  themselves to a catalogue approach are handled

         17  through the City's central warehouse and so you will

         18  be seeing, or assuming that we are able to work out

         19  a version of the report that we can do, you would

         20  see the specifications that go into the requirement

         21  contracts that fill the warehouse and that will in

         22  effect give you much the same information as what

         23  happened with the private sector use of a catalogue,

         24  which is not something that we tend to do.

         25                 With Intro. 536-A, I think at this
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          2  point we oppose the notion that Local Law 30 of

          3  2003, which is the Energy Star provision that

          4  represented a fairly recent agreement between the

          5  Council and this Administration on a regulatory

          6  scheme, we do not believe that it is appropriate at

          7  this point to modify those requirements apropos this

          8  bill.

          9                 We're particularly concerned with the

         10  substantial overlap between this bill and a new set

         11  of state regulations that will kick in in June of

         12  2006 as a result of the Appliance and Equipment

         13  Energy Efficient Standards Act of 2005.

         14                 That statute will regulate all buyers

         15  in the State of New York, and we believe that

         16  layering on additional City requirements would

         17  impose, could impede the State's ability to create

         18  the market, and would also be unduly burdensome to

         19  this City.

         20                 For the other products that are

         21  covered in 536-A, many of the technology products,

         22  we do believe that an administrative promulgation of

         23  standards would be the way to go.

         24                 In general we think that we can

         25  achieve standards that meet the goals of this bill.
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          2                 We note that the power supply

          3  standards that are indicated in the bill would not

          4  be practical for us, based on utilization that we

          5  have.

          6                 And we also note that there are some

          7  constraints, or at least issues in the technology we

          8  know that we need to be cognizant of, if we're

          9  looking at standards there.

         10                 First of all, the City does a

         11  substantial amount of its purchasing from the

         12  State's Office of General Services contracts, and we

         13  don't control the specifications that the State

         14  uses, and, yet, this is an option which saves the

         15  City tremendous amount of money.

         16                 Most recently in an aggregate buy

         17  that we did with the State OGS. We saved 40 percent

         18  off the prices that we were otherwise able to get

         19  for personal desktop computers. So, that's certainly

         20  an option that we need to provide for agencies to

         21  continue to use.

         22                 There are also a series of services

         23  contracts, particularly highly-specialized

         24  consulting contracts, which include technology

         25  goods, as an incidental purchase within the services
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          2  contract, and we do not believe it's appropriate at

          3  this time to apply these type of one-size-fits-all

          4  standards to that setting either.

          5                 Moving on to the take-back and

          6  recycling provisions that are contained, I think

          7  also in 544-A. We believe that as they are framed

          8  there's a potential for conflict with the State

          9  competitive bidding rules. We believe it would be

         10  far more appropriate to address the take back and

         11  recycling issues in the context of the City's Solid

         12  Waste Plan where public and private users would both

         13  be regulated.

         14                 We oppose the inclusion, or

         15  incorporation by reference of foreign standards for

         16  hazardous content of electronics. We would like to

         17  work with you on a City version of those standards

         18  over a slightly longer time frame, and, again, we

         19  note that there is a constraint in terms of our

         20  usage of OGS contracts where we're not able to

         21  construct the specifications.

         22                 Moving toward that same bill's

         23  standards on other products, I think we are making

         24  progress on the standards that are set forth for

         25  products like carpets, adhesives, architectural
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          2  codings and mercury-added lamps, but there should be

          3  an administration promulgation of these rules rather

          4  than putting all of the detail into the statute.

          5                 We would like to be able to modify

          6  them all the time, and as the research evolves in

          7  these areas.

          8                 In construction, in particular, we

          9  believe the appropriate way to achieve these goals

         10  is the implementation of Intro. 324-A, the Green

         11  Buildings Legislation, which the Mayor will sign

         12  next week.

         13                 We think it would be

         14  counterproductive to add new standards for

         15  construction material as per 544-A or 545-A. Rather

         16  we would like to proceed under the process that we

         17  agreed with you in adopting 324-A.

         18                 We believe that the City has made

         19  great strides in sustainable construction practices.

         20  I have included a list of a large number of

         21  environmentally preferable specifications currently

         22  in use as line items in bids, ranging from composite

         23  lumber, flooring, asphalt, park supplies, a whole

         24  variety of things, and we will continue with that

         25  trend and report to you on it in connection with the
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          2  Green Buildings legislation.

          3                 With respect to composite wood in

          4  furniture, we do not believe there are yet

          5  sufficient alternatives available to meet the City's

          6  needs and those that are available come at a fairly

          7  hefty cost premium.

          8                 544-A also includes an annual report

          9  on purchases of PVCs and on certain road deicing

         10  compounds, and we believe we can work on something

         11  like that with you on those two substances.

         12                 With Intro. 545-A, we, again, would

         13  prefer to work with you on language, on the

         14  requirements for recycled paper, double-sided

         15  copying and printing. We believe in administrative

         16  mechanism where we could be able to address those

         17  categories that lack recycled alternative would be

         18  best.

         19                 We also note that the City is not in

         20  a position to be able to regulate the amount of

         21  recycled content in what the public gives us, so the

         22  bill needs to be modified to exclude that provision.

         23  And we probably need a feasibility standard on the

         24  language regarding preprinting of recycled content

         25  percentages, given such things as intermingling of
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          2  lots of paper and stuff like that.

          3                 With respect to the very wide range

          4  of other covered categories of products that include

          5  recycled content, again, we would urge you to focus

          6  and narrow the coverage of the bill. There are a

          7  significant number of plastic and various kinds of

          8  products where the City buys and infinitesimal

          9  quantity and the cost of developing regulations on

         10  the specs are probably not worth it, given that we

         11  are largely obtaining recycled content products in a

         12  way.

         13                 Lastly, turning to Intro. 552-a, the

         14  Green Cleaning Bill, here is one where we strongly

         15  believe that a pilot approach is essential. We need

         16  to take account of the scale of the City's building

         17  stock and its great diversity.

         18                 This City, DCAS cleans 12 million

         19  square feet each day. Those buildings range from

         20  very old landmarks to very modern courthouse,

         21  including the one in Brooklyn that opened recently.

         22  They vary in their structure. They vary in the

         23  amount of foot traffic, the uses that the agencies

         24  have, and they vary in such mundane details as the

         25  size of storage closets. They're substantial space
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          2  challenges for us in dealing with, for example, the

          3  mixing machines that are required for

          4  environmentally preferable cleaning products.

          5                 The pilot program would be a chance

          6  for us to address the effectiveness of

          7  environmentally preferable products for a variety of

          8  conditions, and would also be an opportunity for us

          9  to deal with what are, or what may be, substantial

         10  labor law issues. These provisions would require

         11  changes in work rules and assignments that affect

         12  numerous agencies that clean various spaces

         13  throughout the City and workers who are represented

         14  by many different unions, for example, and who would

         15  have to mix the concentrated products.

         16                 We do believe that it's essential to

         17  test all of the green cleaning products in a

         18  controlled environment before extending these type

         19  of regulations, either to all City agencies beyond

         20  the usage in the DCAS building stock, or to outside

         21  contracts.

         22                 I'd like to thank you for an

         23  opportunity today to discuss our support for

         24  environmentally preferable purchasing and the goals

         25  of these bills.
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          2                 Hopefully, while I've given you a

          3  truncated version of the testimony in my remarks, if

          4  you have additional questions, you would feel free

          5  to let me know and I can give you additional detail

          6  from the testimony itself.

          7                 We stand ready to continue a dialogue

          8  with you and with your staff to develop an

          9  environmentally preferable program that would make

         10  all New Yorkers proud.

         11                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you.

         13  I'm glad you came in and gave us your opinions about

         14  all of these bills that are pending, and we clearly

         15  look forward to working with you in order to bring

         16  about the best laws possible to ensure that workers

         17  and residents of New York City are protected, and

         18  that New York City be as environmentally friendly as

         19  possible. That's for sure.

         20                 I normally open up to my colleagues.

         21  I'm going to ask if they have any questions? Any

         22  questions anyone? Jim?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sure. Go ahead,

         25  please.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman.

          4                 Thank you for your comprehensive

          5  testimony. It's clear that you gave these a lot of

          6  thought. I know that you've been meeting with staff.

          7                 I guess just a general comment. You

          8  know, while I am the prime sponsor of one of the

          9  bills, I am certainly an ardent sponsor of all the

         10  others, and as Chair of the Committee on

         11  Environmental Protection certainly have an interest

         12  in all, you know, environmental issues that we

         13  embrace as a Council, and that you've been working

         14  so hard for with the Administration. And we

         15  appreciate your comprehensive testimony. I won't get

         16  into a lot of specific details, I may on a second

         17  round, but it is my hope that where you have closed

         18  the door outright on some of the bills, that we

         19  could find some common ground and figure out a way

         20  to mutually agree to come to some agreement on, you

         21  know, each of the various bills, and I'm not yet

         22  prepared, notwithstanding your testimony, to sort

         23  of, you know, give up on any of the bills.

         24                 I don't think any of them are sort

         25  of, you know, beyond redemption, as was
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          2  characterized in your testimony.

          3                 So, we promise to work real hard to

          4  work with your folks, but we would hope that you

          5  would also have an open mind with regard to each and

          6  every one of these bills, and not, you know, and

          7  preclude any one of them out of hand.

          8                 I think there's a way to get each of

          9  these done. Would you agree with that?

         10                 MS. SIMPSON: Certainly, Mr. Chairman,

         11  I don't think we meant to imply that any one of the

         12  bills was completely off the table for discussion. I

         13  think there are varying degrees to which we find

         14  some of the bills more troublesome in terms of the

         15  breath than others. There are certainly portions of

         16  each bill that would be, that we would be amenable

         17  to discussing in each case.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: That sounds

         19  great. With that said, I'll turn it back to you, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You're welcome.

         23                 Ms. Simpson, let me ask a couple of

         24  questions. It's my understanding, and my staff are

         25  telling me that the Department of Education recently
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          2  entered into a requirements contract for the

          3  purchase of 100 percent virgin paper. And you said

          4  there is a Mayoral and Governor Executive Order

          5  requiring State and City entities to buy recycled

          6  paper; doesn't that go against the grain as to what

          7  the City of New York and the State of New York has

          8  basically sent out that they want you to purchase

          9  recycled paper, and here's DOE entering into a

         10  requirements contract where 100 percent of their

         11  paper is virgin paper?

         12                 MR. SIMPSON: Mr. Chairman, as you

         13  know, the Department of Education, under its

         14  operating legislation, procures goods as a state

         15  agency and is not governed by the City's rules. So,

         16  I do not directly have oversight information

         17  concerning the Department of Education's purchases.

         18                 I will be happy to look into that and

         19  report back to you on behalf of the Administration

         20  in terms of what that particular purchase entailed.

         21                 But there is a constraint that

         22  applies which is to say that the City does not

         23  regulate the procurement of Department of Education

         24  goods in through the same procurement system that

         25  applies to other agencies.

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, that

          3  clearly contradicts what the Mayor says. The Mayor

          4  says he's in charge of education.

          5                 MR. SIMPSON: We're not saying that

          6  the Mayor is not in charge of Education. We're

          7  saying that the State legislation gave the Mayor

          8  that responsibility, preserved procurement as one

          9  area that did not transfer to the City's regulatory

         10  scheme, it remains a state-generated function.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I see.

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, I don't have any

         13  information on the procurement that you're

         14  describing. I would be happy to look into it and

         15  give you, or have the Administration give you a

         16  report on what it involved and what the reasons

         17  were.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: I can't speculate

         20  sitting here on what they are.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. We

         22  appreciate it.

         23                 MS. SIMPSON: I'm just saying we don't

         24  track their purchases --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I think
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          2  you should.

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: Because they purchase

          4  under State law.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I think you

          6  should. It's not only State money but it's the

          7  City's money also that we're spending. We're

          8  spending a lot of it, $15 billion a year they spend

          9  for education. And there's no reason why the City

         10  can't track what's going on at DOE. In fact, that's

         11  what should be happening. There should be a tracking

         12  that goes on with DOE by the City of New York and by

         13  the State.

         14                 MS. SIMPSON: Actually, Mr. Chairman,

         15  that's something that this Administration has made

         16  great strides on recently, where it will take awhile

         17  for it to bear fruit, but as you know, these are two

         18  separate systems and they were left that way by the

         19  State Legislature.

         20                 But we have recently worked with the

         21  Department of Education on merging the financial

         22  management systems, so that in fact we will, when

         23  the transition has been completed, we will have

         24  better data on the purchases by the Department of

         25  Education.
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          2                 At the point when we inherited the

          3  systems that were in place prior to the Mayor's

          4  assumption of control, those systems were completely

          5  incompatible and didn't communicate with the City's

          6  system and were in the process of changing that.

          7  That will take awhile, it's a big ocean-liner to

          8  turn around, and that will take awhile to achieve,

          9  but we're very much underway. And as we've discussed

         10  with you, the electronic procurement workflow

         11  initiative, where we're trying to get better

         12  tracking data all around, we have also incorporated

         13  the Department of Education into that initiative so

         14  that we can increase visibility.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         16                 MS. SIMPSON: All that said, they

         17  still play by rules that are different than what the

         18  Mayor's other --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: If the rules of

         20  the State and the rules of the City is that you're

         21  supposed to buy recycled paper and they're not

         22  abiding by the rule, then who is supposed to keep

         23  them in check when the Mayor is in charge?

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: I'm sure that we will be

         25  able to give you information on what they're doing,
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          2  and I'm sure that we will be able to get back to

          3  you.

          4                 Again, we have no information that

          5  they are not following the rules.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          7                 MS. SIMPSON: I'd be happy to give you

          8  the information once I have it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Well, my

         10  staff phoned me that they entered into a contract,

         11  100 percent virgin paper, when the Executive Order,

         12  both at the City level and the State level said

         13  you're supposed to buy recycled paper.

         14                 MS. SIMPSON: I'm sure if there is an

         15  applicable Executive Order they're aware of it, and

         16  I will find out the information and give it to you.

         17  But I can't guess at this microphone what that

         18  information will be.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, I

         20  appreciate it.

         21                 Well, you would agree that if, in

         22  fact, they did that, that does not fit within the

         23  Executive Order of the State and the City of New

         24  York. You would agree with that, right?

         25                 MS. SIMPSON: Mr. Chairman, I can't
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          2  make any comment on what they might had done when I

          3  have no information.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I asked you a

          5  simple question. And my question is this: You would

          6  agree or disagree one way or the other that if DOE

          7  purchased virgin paper in violation of the Exec

          8  State Order or the City Order, that would be wrong;

          9  would you agree or disagree with that?

         10                 MS. SIMPSON: Both of those Executive

         11  Orders have provisions in terms of when they apply

         12  and when they don't. Without any facts, I can't

         13  speculate about whether there's a violation. I will

         14  get you the facts.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         16                 Well, I listened to what you had to

         17  say in your testimony, and if DOE has entered into a

         18  requirement contract, I'm telling you that is not

         19  the type of situation we want to see.

         20                 We want to see the City of New York

         21  to use recycled goods and to be environmentally

         22  friendly, and I'm sure that you want that also.

         23                 I think you stated earlier, if I'm

         24  not mistaken, that the Mayor implemented an

         25  Executive Order, I forgot the name, for Minority and
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          2  Woman-Owned Businesses, what is that number?

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: Executive Order 71 of

          4  2005.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And did I hear

          6  you say that something to the effect that minority

          7  and woman-owned firms -- I'm sorry. Minority and

          8  woman-owned firms, that you did not want to proceed

          9  with some of these matters because they could not

         10  deal with the paperwork that is required in order to

         11  fulfill certain contracts; did I hear you say that?

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: No. What I said is that

         13  in general, all of the very small contracts where

         14  emerging businesses, and they could be emerging

         15  businesses of any description, there are contracts

         16  that we procure. Again, you've had hearings on the

         17  micro purchase and small purchase arena, and I

         18  think, again, the Council is well aware of how we

         19  have tried to make that a very short streamlined

         20  process where agencies can fax out requirements that

         21  are short and often a page or two and purchases can

         22  be documented, in some cases electronically.

         23                 One of the criticisms of the City's

         24  procurement system historically has been that it's

         25  cumbersome and that all of the record keeping
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          2  requirements are burdensome on small businesses.

          3  This criticism was reiterated by the Council in its

          4  disparity study that was published last winter and

          5  we're trying to be responsive to those criticisms by

          6  streamlining the process for small purchases.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But the small

          8  purchases, that's not only for minority and

          9  woman-owned businesses that you're referring to; is

         10  that correct?

         11                 MS. SIMPSON: Of course not. But as

         12  you know, again, these are issues that we've

         13  discussed with you and hearings. We have expanded

         14  access through the Five Plus Five program. We have

         15  an enhanced participation of minority firms in that

         16  particular area of purchasing. It is an area where

         17  we're trying to expand. Again, this was a

         18  recommendation of the Council's own study and we are

         19  responsive to that recommendation by attempting to

         20  expand access to minority firms at that dollar level

         21  so that they can build capacity to do larger dollar

         22  value contracts.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But let me ask

         24  you a question. These small micro contracts, are 100

         25  percent of them going to minority and women-owned
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          2  businesses?

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: No. But what we're doing

          4  is the 50 percent --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's the

          6  implication that I received in reading your

          7  statement here.

          8                 It says, "As we consider tightened

          9  regulations for environmentally preferable

         10  purchases, especially major record keeping burdens,

         11  we must also consider the impact upon the ability of

         12  the MWBEs."

         13                 But you've basically indicated that

         14  --

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: You're making a huge

         16  leap from what I said. And, again, I've testified

         17  many times --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Excuse me.

         19  Excuse me, Ms. Simpson, I'm reading from your

         20  statement here.

         21                 MS. SIMPSON: I understand that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm asking you a

         23  question.

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: And I'm trying to answer

         25  it, sir.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me ask

          3  the question then, if you don't mind?

          4                 Are you referring only to minority

          5  and woman-owned businesses? Because my understanding

          6  is they're not the only one that have micro

          7  purchases. And if you're saying that the problem is

          8  only with them and not with everyone else.

          9                 MS. SIMPSON: Of course not.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Then why did you

         11  mention only minority and woman-owned businesses?

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: The paragraph says

         13  "other small and emerging businesses." What I'm

         14  trying to say --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Let me ask a

         16  question.

         17                 MS. SIMPSON: Mr. Chairman, I didn't

         18  imagine that by coming here you would forget all the

         19  other times --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I understand

         21  that.

         22                 MS. SIMPSON: -- I've testified in

         23  front of you about the program that we're talking

         24  about, so I didn't put in all of the details about

         25  how this program works.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, listen --

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: But it is a 50 percent

          4  access for small business and minority business

          5  firms. We tried to get five minority firms and five

          6  randomly-drawn firms for every purchase. We've

          7  testified about that in front of the Council. We are

          8  trying to make that an effective program, and we are

          9  trying to keep the purchasing requirements

         10  streamlined.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Quite frankly,

         12  Ms. --

         13                 MS. SIMPSON: I didn't add all of the

         14  detail, although I have testified for hours on those

         15  details in front of your Committee at different

         16  times.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Ms. Simpson, are

         18  you saying that there's only problems as far as

         19  paperwork with only micro contracts?

         20                 Because we're not only talking about

         21  small contracts, we're talking about contracts,

         22  period.

         23                 MS. SIMPSON: Yes, as was I when I

         24  said we should exempt the small and micro purchases.

         25  That was the purpose of including this discussion,
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          2  was to say, as with many of the requirements that we

          3  talked to your Committee about, and many of the

          4  things that we've reached agreement on, we generally

          5  exclude the categories of small and micro purchases

          6  in order to benefit all of the small businesses that

          7  participate in that work.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          9                 Well, let me just say, if you're not

         10  aware, there will be a piece of legislation that's

         11  being introduced by the City Council this Wednesday

         12  in order to ensure that it goes beyond the Mayor's

         13  Executive Order, as far as Minority and Women-Owned

         14  Businesses. We will pass a law to that effect. So,

         15  if you're not aware of that, so be advised. And I

         16  look forward to working with you to pass the law

         17  regarding minority and woman-owned businesses and

         18  ensuring that they have their share of contracts in

         19  the City of New York.

         20                 Questions?

         21                 Council Member Clarke and then

         22  Council Member Stewart.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Ms. Simpson, I

         24  just sort of wanted to follow up on the line of the

         25  conversation you just completed with Chairman Robert
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          2  Jackson. And it seems like what we're saying here is

          3  that we will have a challenge with the emerging and

          4  I guess small minority and woman-owned business

          5  enterprise if we create a standard that's

          6  stringently environmentally friendly.

          7                 And I kind of have a problem with

          8  that, because what it says is a couple of things. It

          9  sends a couple of signals. It sends a signal that

         10  we're not willing to set a standard here in the City

         11  of New York about the types of products we use that

         12  not are only environmentally friendly, but that can

         13  basically preserve the health and well being of the

         14  people of this City, and part of the reason we're

         15  doing that is because there is a part of our

         16  population that can't afford to do this.

         17                 MS. SIMPSON: No, of course not.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. So then

         19  maybe you want to clarify, because that was the

         20  feedback that I got, that the administrative cost is

         21  so high, it is cost prohibitive for us to get the

         22  type of participation from groups that have been

         23  historically disadvantaged in our procurement

         24  process. And so we need to be able to keep the

         25  standards flexible enough for the standards to be
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          2  minimal enough for these groups to be able to

          3  participate, and I think that sends the wrong

          4  signal.

          5                 MS. SIMPSON: A competitive bid

          6  package for the kinds of goods that we're talking

          7  about with the kind of specifications that we're

          8  talking about could easily be, again, not all just

          9  related to the goods that we're talking about here,

         10  but a competitive bid package for complicated

         11  contract with goods, purchases in it, could easily

         12  be several inches thick. It is a detailed cumbersome

         13  document. It requires the businesses to jump through

         14  a lot of record-keeping hoops in order to comply. We

         15  have traditionally tried to keep the specifications

         16  that are used in small purchases and micro purchases

         17  much simpler, so that the entire document can be a

         18  single page, or two pages.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I get that

         20  point.

         21                 But what it sounds --

         22                 MS. SIMPSON: That's all I'm saying --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: All right.

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: -- That in that arena --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: So now we're
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          2  talking about complicity versus simplicity, right?

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: You're saying

          5  one package can be the ones that would require the

          6  use of environmentally friendly, or the things that

          7  we're suggesting here could be --

          8                 MS. SIMPSON: No. The kind of

          9  flexibility I'm talking about, let's assume that,

         10  just hypothetically, that we were looking at

         11  recycled content of products. The amount of detail

         12  that we would believe, if we had administratively

         13  promulgated regulations where we could deal with

         14  this, we would probably address that with a great

         15  deal more detail on what a spec could contain if we

         16  were procuring a $30 million requirement contract

         17  than what we would put for a spec to buy $20,000

         18  worth of aplastic product.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Right.

         20                 MS. SIMPSON: In which we might say to

         21  the agency for the latter, you can use general

         22  language that encourages recycled content but you

         23  wouldn't necessarily include a 20-page spec.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Just to put it

         25  into laypeople's terms, I understand what you're

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  saying. You're talking about complexity versus

          3  simplicity.

          4                 MS. SIMPSON: Mostly, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And it's a lot

          6  simpler to go with, it's a lot simpler and we know

          7  that, this is no rocket science, to go with the same

          8  types of toxic things we've been going with versus

          9  to make that shift to the environmentally,

         10  notwithstanding with all of the complexities based

         11  on the size of the contract or the amount of content

         12  of toxicity, right? What we're talking about is

         13  that, you know, it's a lot easier for us to just go

         14  with the way that things are, and then, what, phase

         15  it in over time, than it is to set a standard for

         16  what we expect will be an environmentally friendly

         17  environment and having everyone raise their level of

         18  expertise.

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: In general that's not

         20  our experience. In general our experience is that we

         21  would be obtaining environmentally preferable

         22  products at all levels of purchasing, and it isn't

         23  necessarily the case that by having a simpler

         24  specification for plastic goods that we might buy in

         25  a tiny little quantity, versus plastic goods that we
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          2  would buy in multi-millions. I'm not saying by

          3  simplifying the spec that we will get unhealthy or

          4  unpreferable products. I'm saying that by tailoring

          5  the regulation and the level of record keeping to

          6  the value of what you're preparing, you would be

          7  able to both include, or encourage participation by

          8  small businesses, and achieve an environmentally

          9  preferable result.

         10                 I'm simply saying that it's not a one

         11  size fits all.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Right.

         13                 MS. SIMPSON: The notion is that with

         14  a regulatory scheme you want to be able to include

         15  enough flexibility that at appropriate dollar levels

         16  you don't necessarily layer on quite as many thick

         17  specifications and record keeping mandates as you

         18  would if you're buying a lot. It really was the same

         19  thing we would do. You know, I assume each of us in

         20  thinking about these things on a household level --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: You're talking

         22  about basically a level of quality control that is

         23  reflective in the documentation or the

         24  specifications that are required for that particular

         25  product and what level of quality we're dealing
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          2  with.

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: Not quality, but just,

          4  again, we're talking about a level of ongoing

          5  research that City staff always do that we're

          6  confident in when we're talking about some, there

          7  are some products, recycled paper would be an

          8  example, where the market is clearly out there and

          9  anybody at any level of business who wants to

         10  compete in that arena has access to the product that

         11  meet an environmentally preferable spec and the spec

         12  can be written fairly simply.

         13                 There are products that are like that

         14  where regardless of the quantity, regardless of the

         15  purpose, we probably could adapt.

         16                 There are other products where,

         17  again, the City buys such tiny quantities of a

         18  particular thing, that amount of time and energy

         19  that anybody would spend, detailing in writing a

         20  specification that was scientifically correct is

         21  probably not a good use of anyone's time, relative

         22  to the larger million dollar or billion dollar

         23  categories that we have.

         24                 We're simply saying that to do this

         25  kind of enforcement and to do this kind of program
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          2  in a successful way, it's best to target the level

          3  of regulation to the practical consequence of what

          4  we're doing.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I'm getting

          6  the impression from what you're saying that it's an

          7  either/or situation? Because it seems to me that it

          8  should be a both and. And I say that simply because

          9  what you may see as a minor purchase, may be part of

         10  the stumbling block to getting to that level of

         11  environmental soundness that we're interested in

         12  achieving.

         13                 So, isn't it possible that both

         14  should be happening simultaneously, that we should

         15  be even looking at those smaller purchases, and the

         16  quantity in which the City purchases them, and, you

         17  know, what harm or good they present to the people

         18  of the City of New York, be they workers or be they

         19  residents.

         20                 MS. SIMPSON: The goal of

         21  environmentally preferable purchasing applies across

         22  the board.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Right.

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: The mechanism for

         25  achieving it should be different, unless we want to
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          2  get to a point where because of the complexity of

          3  what we're sending out in solicitation packages, we

          4  are only dealing with the largest companies, the

          5  Fortune 500, whatever.

          6                 If we want to have a business

          7  environment that is open to smaller participants New

          8  York companies, we've been told by numerous studies,

          9  including the Council's own study, that we need to

         10  do that in a way that is more practical for them to

         11  respond, and that the more we send them with a big,

         12  thick, you know, sort of bid package and say here

         13  are the 1,400 regulations you have to comply with to

         14  do this with us, the harder it is to get that

         15  participation.

         16                 And even if --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I understand

         18  your point, Ms. Simpson, but implied in that

         19  statement is that it seems like in order to

         20  accomplish that goal, what you're saying is that

         21  ultimately there are going to be separate

         22  categories, and that some of those categories may be

         23  a compromise on the goal we're trying to reach in

         24  terms of --

         25                 MS. SIMPSON: I think we're actually
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          2  compromising on the record keeping more than we're

          3  compromising on the actual substance.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay.

          5                 MS. SIMPSON: And it's the record

          6  keeping burden that people complain about, not the

          7  substance.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: How do we know

          9  that? Because what we're talking about through this

         10  legislation has to do with the substance.

         11                 So, I'm finding somewhat of a

         12  disconnect between what you're saying, you know, is

         13  most practical, and the actual goals you're trying

         14  to accomplish.

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: Much of the

         16  environmental, the legislation that this Council has

         17  passed, including Energy Star, much of the

         18  legislation that the Council has passed in the

         19  procurement arena over many decades, including going

         20  back to the Vendex law and different laws that

         21  regulate the business integrity, whatever, virtually

         22  all of the PPB rules that we operate under in our

         23  system, there is a separate system in effect that

         24  small and micropurchases are exempt. And if we don't

         25  include that provision, in effect you convert those
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          2  purchases into the very complex alternatives that

          3  we're trying to spare them.

          4                 And, so, again, all of this type of

          5  what we could achieve substantively, could always be

          6  researched on a post-audit basis, could always be

          7  looked at as the Department of Small Business

          8  Services continues to do outreach with small

          9  companies and finds out what are their impediments,

         10  to, you know, their participation in the market, et

         11  cetera. It's a very different thing to say to those

         12  companies and in addition to everything else that

         13  you're learning to do to come to do business with

         14  the City of New York, we need you to fill out a

         15  level of detailed report in order to enable us to

         16  provide a level of detailed report. That's all we're

         17  saying here is that by keeping those purchases in

         18  the bill, you're risking taking goals that we know,

         19  we assume that we share with the Committee and

         20  running them at cost purposes to this.

         21                 The goal of a small purchase program

         22  should be streamlining, not making that process more

         23  complicated. And that's in effect what we're trying

         24  to do here, and we urge that that particular

         25  category of purchasing be exempted from those parts
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          2  of this legislation that would require businesses to

          3  comply with very, very detailed specs.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Right. I'm

          5  going to end here, because it just seems to me that

          6  perhaps often times we are so accustomed to doing

          7  things in a certain manner, we assume that that's,

          8  you know, the ultimate way of doing it, and I don't

          9  think that we prescribe how you go about getting the

         10  results that we're talking about here. The

         11  assumption is that it's going to require that much

         12  more documentation be involved. And perhaps there

         13  are other ways of looking at this that would not put

         14  us in that position which would certainly make it

         15  much more of a challenge for those smaller

         16  businesses to have to deal with the City.

         17                 You know, I'm just getting a feeling

         18  here that there is such a resistance that we haven't

         19  looked at what the alternatives are completely, in

         20  terms of being able to meet the mandates of the law

         21  without making it an onerous task for smaller

         22  businesses.

         23                 MS. SIMPSON: We're talking, again, I

         24  would urge that we look at the sort of the more

         25  comprehensive provisions. I mean, we're talking
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          2  about a fragment of the purchasing world. I mean,

          3  once you really zero in on the goods or construction

          4  purposes that we're talking about, it's less than

          5  one percent.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Um-hmm.

          7                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, if you're

          8  suggesting that for the benefit of the businesses

          9  that are trying to supply us with that less than one

         10  percent of the purchases that occur in that dollar

         11  range, we should introduce additional flexibility

         12  particularly on record keeping.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I think the

         14  flexibility on record keeping really is up to the

         15  agency in how they craft that. That's what I'm

         16  suggesting.

         17                 MS. SIMPSON: Assuming that you go

         18  with the type of structure that we're talking about,

         19  yes, that would be true.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: So, you know,

         21  I'm going to leave it there, because I'm not 100

         22  percent convinced of what you're saying.

         23                 I can see the challenge that you've

         24  presented in the way that you've presented it, but

         25  I'm not certain that that is the only way to look at
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          2  it.

          3                 So, Mr. Chair. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          5                 Dr. Stewart, from Brooklyn.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Ms. Simpson,

          7  good afternoon.

          8                 MS. SIMPSON: Hi.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The

         10  Administrative Code requires that DCAS establish

         11  standards for the minimal recycle content of

         12  non-paper products purchased by the City and to

         13  utilize the federal government's guidelines in

         14  recycle content of materials.

         15                 The federal guidelines list 54 items

         16  in eight different product categories. However, DCAS

         17  latest report indicates that the City only purchase

         18  19 non-paper product, recycled products, and these

         19  include some items not covered by the federal

         20  guidelines.

         21                 Now, why has the City not made a

         22  greater effort thus far to purchase goods for

         23  recycle content?

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: The City has actually

         25  made a very substantial effort and it has increased
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          2  substantially over the course of this

          3  Administration. We hope to be able to give you the

          4  report for Fiscal '05 in October and you'll see a

          5  substantial expansion on the part of DCAS of the

          6  purchases. Again, they're just compiling the data to

          7  give you that information.

          8                 There will be substantial new

          9  categories and new information in that report.

         10                 I believe the grand total of recycled

         11  content for that year will be 52, approximately $52

         12  million. There will be significant expansion over

         13  prior years, and we'd be happy to share that data

         14  with you as soon as the report is completed.

         15                 In some categories that may be

         16  covered by the federal standards, the City in fact

         17  doesn't purchase very much or any of the materials,

         18  so that's one factor.

         19                 But if there's a particular category

         20  that you're interested in, let us know and we will

         21  give you the detail on purchasing in that particular

         22  category.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, you said

         24  it will be, the figures are close to 52 up to 54?

         25                 MS. SIMPSON: Right. I think actually,

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  one way of looking, and again there is some more

          3  detail on this in the report, in the testimony, but

          4  you'll see more when you see the environmental

          5  purchasing report from DCAS next month, when you

          6  look at what DCAS buys, DCAS buys for a total of

          7  some 60 plus agencies, and they buy about 850, 870

          8  million dollars worth of goods a year. And once you

          9  take out the categories where this type of

         10  requirement is less applicable, such as food and

         11  fuel, when you look at the categories where you

         12  actually have content and you could have a recycled

         13  content component, the $175 million was of

         14  environmentally preferable products that we're

         15  already buying is a quite substantial portion of

         16  what remains.

         17                 You'll see, again, a more graphic and

         18  detailed representation of that in the report that

         19  will be coming out next month.

         20                 But within the categories of what the

         21  City actually uses DCAS's program of environmentally

         22  preferable purchasing is quite substantial.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: How much do

         24  we spend on the recycled goods?

         25                 MS. SIMPSON: I believe it's about $52
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          2  million in the past fiscal year.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

          4                 Do you agree that Intro. 545 will

          5  clarify the City's obligations to buy recycled

          6  products according to the federal guidelines; do you

          7  believe that?

          8                 MS. SIMPSON: Well, not necessarily.

          9  There really are substantial questions in terms of

         10  how Intro. 545-A would work as reflected in my

         11  testimony.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right, I

         13  want to switch a little bit. Awhile ago you

         14  mentioned Executive Order 71. Considering our

         15  experience with Executive Order 41, whereby we, you

         16  know, the order was created, and subsequent to that

         17  questions were asked and it seems that it was

         18  somewhat contradictory to what maybe some -- let's

         19  say the Police Department was doing; how are we to

         20  leave it up to Executive Order 71 to really help the

         21  folks with MWBs?

         22                 MS. SIMPSON: Well, Executive Order 71

         23  simply sets in motion a rule-making proceeding under

         24  the Department of Small Business Services, which

         25  would file the City Administrative Procedure Act and
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          2  would therefore be fully transparent and would be

          3  detailed, and it's basically the mechanism that the

          4  City followed in the program of, Minority and

          5  Woman-Owned Goals Program that lapsed several years

          6  ago, so it was also created by a set of rule-makings

          7  that came out of the Department of Business Services

          8  at that time.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But my point

         10  is basically that, I don't think we would like to

         11  leave it up to Executive Order. We want to put it

         12  into law because we want it to happen. We don't want

         13  to have the same experience that we have had with

         14  Executive Order 41.

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: Well, I'm not commenting

         16  on Executive Order 41, because it's outside the

         17  procurement arena. I don't know anything about the

         18  details of Executive Order 41. I'm sure other people

         19  in the Administration can comment on that, but I

         20  assure you that regulations such as are contemplated

         21  by Executive Order 71 have the force and effective

         22  law. They are -- it would be a legal mandate and the

         23  Mayor is strongly committed to that legal mandate,

         24  which is why he announced it earlier this month.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right,
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          2  thank you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Ms. Simpson,

          4  with respect to, I think you indicated that $52

          5  million give or take is spent on recycled goods.

          6                 MS. SIMPSON: Direct goods purchased,

          7  yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's $52

          9  million out of -- what do we procure every year?

         10  About 15 billion a year?

         11                 MS. SIMPSON: It's 11.4. But, no,

         12  again, you have to look at that procurement universe

         13  for what it is. Well over half of that is services,

         14  probably two-thirds of that is services, human

         15  services, any number of service contracts where the

         16  primary item that the City is procuring is people's

         17  time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: So, people might be

         20  recyclable, but it's not something that I can

         21  quantify, so that's not part of what that universe

         22  would involve.

         23                 When you're looking at goods

         24  purchases, again, which is the example I gave your

         25  colleague, the goods purchases, I'll have better
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          2  numbers for you next month, but a substantial

          3  portion of the goods purchases are food, a

          4  substantial portion are fuel, and, again, while

          5  we're moving to alternative fuel vehicles, we still

          6  have a significant fleet that the City is using and

          7  we also have heating oil, and other types of fuel.

          8                 So, once you start lopping off the

          9  categories where recycled products are not a factor,

         10  and then you zero in on the remaining categories of

         11  goods, then I think what you'll see is that the

         12  total environmental preferable purchasing load that

         13  DCAS has is very substantial portion of where it

         14  could be.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What about

         16  construction? How much do we spend on construction?

         17                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, in construction,

         18  it's about $3.3 billion. And there the list of

         19  environmentally preferable specifications that the

         20  City is using is very extensive.

         21                 I mean, they're definitely categories

         22  of environmentally preferable purchasing that have

         23  become the standard and that we are doing

         24  substantial construction, and you will see that

         25  reflected, which is why that proposal that we're
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          2  coming forward with is that that is the agreement

          3  that we reached with the Council on Intro. 324-A.

          4  The Green Buildings Initiative will show significant

          5  environmentally preferable procurement in the

          6  construction arena, we'd be able to document that as

          7  we agreed in that legislation, and you'll see

          8  concrete evidence so-to-speak of the types of

          9  recycled products that are widely in use in our

         10  capital construction projects.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, the $52

         12  million that you said that the City spent, give or

         13  take on recycle goods, that did or did not include

         14  construction?

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: No, that's direct

         16  purchases of goods by DCAS. It doesn't include the

         17  other categories.

         18                 And I will point out again, when

         19  we're looking at the construction universe as well,

         20  remember that the construction universe includes

         21  both construction services and construction-related

         22  services. Construction-related services are the

         23  design contracts. Again, they're very substantial in

         24  size, but what we buy when we buy a design contract

         25  is we're buying people's time. We're not buying a
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          2  product. And similarly, when you're looking at the

          3  construction services, the actual contract of

          4  building the building, it varies with the type of

          5  contract that you're talking about, but the vast

          6  majority of that spend is the spend for the time of

          7  the people who are building the building.

          8                 So you have to really narrow those

          9  categories to understand what the component of the

         10  goods is.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You're going to

         12  have that breakdown for us, a certain date in

         13  October you said?

         14                 MS. SIMPSON: The DCAS purchasing of

         15  direct goods is an annual report that DCAS publishes

         16  in October.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What about

         18  construction. Are you going to have a breakdown on

         19  that as far as what type of recyclable material had

         20  been purchased as far as construction?

         21                 MS. SIMPSON: I believe the annual

         22  reporting requirement is included in 324-A as a part

         23  of the green buildings. Legislation is not in effect

         24  yet, so obviously I can't speculate.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You didn't have
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          2  to wait for the legislation to give me a percentage

          3  of how much money we spend on recycled products in

          4  construction, did you?

          5                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, what we're

          6  looking at right now is trying to develop the

          7  mechanism to comply with the tracking requirements

          8  that we're going to use.

          9                 We've agreed to a report on 324-A,

         10  and we're going to meet that obligation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: That requires a

         13  substantial change in our tracking in order to be

         14  able to do it, and, no, it's not instant. But we

         15  will have it in compliance with that law.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, you state

         17  that the goods used in construction are adequately

         18  addressed in Intro. 324-A; is that correct?

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: We believe that we need

         20  to implement 324-A and work that again. We're

         21  committed to making a success out of that and we

         22  believe that --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And the Mayor is

         24  going to sign it into law you said next week?

         25                 MS. SIMPSON: Next week, yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, my

          3  understanding is that this legislation, however,

          4  does not cover tenant improvement, which represents

          5  a very substantial portion of the City's

          6  construction dollars.

          7                 Leased space represents about half of

          8  the City's real estate holdings. Do you agree or

          9  disagree with this assessment?

         10                 MS. SIMPSON: I don't want to

         11  speculate on percentages, but I think I made clear

         12  in our testimony that the constraints that apply to

         13  leased space are quite different.

         14                 The City, I know this might be a

         15  little shocking, but the City isn't necessarily the

         16  favorite tenant of every private land owner out

         17  there. We have a very tough time finding space,

         18  particularly when we need to find space in a

         19  particular neighborhood or for a particular purpose.

         20  And we're competing in a market where property

         21  owners have many other options at various times and

         22  it's a very difficult situation for the City and

         23  we're not in a position to regulate the behavior of

         24  private owners.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You can
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          2  advocate.

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: And we do.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You do?

          5                 MS. SIMPSON: Sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, you can

          7  advocate it by requiring it in the agreements that

          8  you have with the people that you're going to be

          9  renting space from.

         10                 MS. SIMPSON: We don't believe we

         11  could do that without a substantial cost premium to

         12  this City, and in all likelihood, a substantial

         13  decline in a number of property owners that would be

         14  willing to deal with the City which is already an

         15  issue.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, it seems

         17  as though you seem to have an excuse or a position

         18  on everything in order to not move forward in a very

         19  assertive, progressive, green way.

         20                 MS. SIMPSON: I think that the City of

         21  New York has --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: While I'm

         23  sitting here, I'm getting that feeling.

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: Well, I'm disappointed

         25  in that feeling, because I believe the City of New
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          2  York has extraordinary successful sustainable

          3  construction program and extraordinarily successful

          4  environmentally preferable purchasing program for

          5  goods. We're here today and we've said in meetings

          6  with your staff on numerous occasions, we are here

          7  to have a dialogue and to move these bills from

          8  where they are to a reality that we can all

          9  implement and be proud of. And I think that we're

         10  quite a long way toward that goal.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. On Intro.

         12  544-A, the electronics take back, on page seven, I

         13  guess you suggested that one of the ways that this

         14  could be dealt with is within the City's, the

         15  Mayor's Solid Waste Management Plan. Would you then

         16  recommend to the Administration that they take

         17  Intro. 544-A and include it into the Solid Waste

         18  Management Plan, as a way of addressing it, just

         19  incorporate that into the SWMP plan?

         20                 MS. SIMPSON: I think that we've had

         21  dialogue, again, this is through other City

         22  agencies, and other committees, but I believe we've

         23  had dialogue about the whole issue of electronic

         24  product take back and recycling, and that is

         25  something that we hope to resolve in the context of
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          2  the Solid Waste Plan.

          3                 I doubt that you could literally lift

          4  the entire language from this bill into the Solid

          5  Waste plan, but the goal that you're talking about

          6  is appropriate for the Solid Waste Plan.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, as a member

          8  of the Sanitation and Solid Waste Committee, then I

          9  would expect since you made a suggestion as the

         10  Chief Procurement Officer, that maybe a better way

         11  to deal with this is through the SWMP, the Solid

         12  Waste Management Plan, that I assume that we're

         13  going to see some aspect of that electronic take

         14  back and the revised portion of the Mayor's Solid

         15  Waste Management Plan within the near future?

         16                 MS. SIMPSON: Well, as the Chief

         17  procurement officer, I think the main point I was

         18  making is that the issue is not really a procurement

         19  issue.

         20                 The issue of the electronic take back

         21  and recycling, packaging and all that is an issue

         22  that affects public and private sector users, and

         23  affects the City primarily in its capacity as having

         24  to deal with the solid waste.

         25                 So, I try very hard as Chief
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          2  Procurement Officer not to have a great deal of

          3  opinions how other City agencies should operate in

          4  context other than procurement, and so what I'm

          5  saying is, we don't think it's a procurement issue.

          6  I am told by others within the Administration who

          7  I'm sure will testify on the Solid Waste issues,

          8  that this is a consideration that we would be

          9  pleased to have discussion of in that setting. But

         10  that won't be me.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So that if it's

         12  not addressed in the Solid Waste Management Plan,

         13  this City Council then passed a law that said that

         14  in fact we purchase computer equipment, that there

         15  must be a take-back provision in there, that would

         16  be okay also, wouldn't it?

         17                 MS. SIMPSON: We believe that that

         18  particular provision framed the way you've got it

         19  would be a problem under the State competitive

         20  bidding rules.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Ms. Simpson,

         22  thank you for your position on these particular

         23  matters, and we look forward to working with you.

         24                 I do take exception to the Minority

         25  and Woman-owned Businesses. That's a very sensitive
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          2  subject in this City Council, and especially with

          3  members of the Black, Latino and Asian Caucus. It

          4  clearly indicates by the wording that you're only

          5  referring to Minority and Woman-Owned Businesses,

          6  and I say that to you, that I take exception to

          7  that. I think that we are referring to, as far as

          8  this legislation, all contracts and not just micro

          9  contracts. We're talking about all contracts the

         10  City of New York deals with, and clearly by your

         11  statement, from what it's written, it clearly

         12  indicates, and has expressed, in my opinion, that

         13  the only ones that will have problems with the

         14  paperwork is Minority and Woman-Owned Businesses.

         15  Let me just say I take exception to that.

         16                 MS. SIMPSON: I take exception to your

         17  characterization of testimony in the sentence says

         18  small and emerging businesses and is talking about

         19  small purchases. I certainly regret --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It says Minority

         21  and Woman-Owned Businesses, and it doesn't say all

         22  small businesses that deal with this.

         23                 MS. SIMPSON: Yes, it does.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It doesn't say

         25  that. It doesn't say that. If it said that, it would
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          2  say that. It says Minority and Woman-Owned

          3  Businesses and other small emerging businesses. But

          4  it doesn't say all small businesses that deal with

          5  micro purchases.

          6                 MS. SIMPSON: I really take exception

          7  to the way you're reading the sentence. It doesn't

          8  say all in front of either of those.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Maybe then your

         10  wording should have been all --

         11                 MS. SIMPSON: All we're trying to say,

         12  as I emphasized in talking to Council Member Clarke,

         13  is that at that purchasing level, the businesses

         14  that we deal with need us to have a very simple

         15  streamlined process, and we believe there are

         16  recommendations from the Council that we've been

         17  responsive to in creating that streamlined process.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Tristan

         20  Gillespie, from the Environmental Protection Agency,

         21  Region 2. And John Filippelli, from US Environmental

         22  Protection Agency.

         23                 Good afternoon. Thank you. I

         24  apologize for the long delay, but sometimes you have

         25  to flesh things out in order to get a clear picture.
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          2                 Could you just, both of you, state

          3  your name and titles for the record, and then you

          4  may begin your testimony.

          5                 MR. FILIPPELLI: My name is John

          6  Filippelli. I work with US EPA Region 2.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. And you,

          8  sir?

          9                 MR. GILLESPIE: Tristan Gillespie,

         10  also with EPA Region 2.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, you may

         12  begin.

         13                 MR. FILIPPELLI: Good afternoon. Thank

         14  you, Chairman Jackson, and members of the Committee

         15  for the invitation to appear here today. I

         16  appreciate having the opportunity to share with you

         17  what we know about the benefits of Environmentally

         18  Preferable Purchasing, or EPP.

         19                 The bills on the table today

         20  represent an ambitious commitment to EPP by the City

         21  of New York, and the Environmental Protection Agency

         22  applauds the City in its continuing effort to

         23  improve the environment through purchasing

         24  decisions.

         25                 Since the EPA was first established
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          2  in 1970, tremendous environmental improvements have

          3  been made. Efforts at the federal, state and City

          4  levels, investment by industry and attention of

          5  numerous citizens organizations have led to better

          6  air quality, clear water, safer waste management,

          7  and clean up of many contaminated sites.

          8                 Even so, they're still a long way to

          9  go and many new challenges.

         10                 For example, as major sources of

         11  pollution have been addressed, the smoke stacks, the

         12  sewage discharges and the open dumps, it has become

         13  clear that millions of apparently small decisions

         14  made by individuals and business every day, in the

         15  use of cleaners, paints, coatings, fertilizers,

         16  pesticides and energy, also have a sizeable impact

         17  on air, water, land and indoor environments. I will

         18  focus my remarks today on cleaners, and touch

         19  briefly on green energy.

         20                 Cleaning products are necessary for

         21  maintaining attractive and helpful conditions in

         22  home and workplace, in addition to the obvious

         23  aesthetic benefits of cleaning, the removal of dust,

         24  allergens and infectious agents, is critical to

         25  maintaining healthful indoor environments.
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          2                 Some of the ingredients in the

          3  cleaning products themselves can present health and

          4  environmental concerns. They may contain chemicals

          5  associated with eye, skin or respiratory irritation

          6  and other human health issues.

          7                 Additionally, the concentrated forms

          8  of some commercial cleaning products are classified

          9  as hazardous, creating potential handling, storage

         10  and disposal issues for users.

         11                 Reducing these human health and

         12  environmental concerns is an important reason for

         13  implementing EPP cleaning products programs.

         14                 To echo the introductory statement in

         15  proposal 534-A, in almost every category of goods,

         16  there will be some products that are environmentally

         17  preferable to others.

         18                 In many instances, there is little or

         19  no cost associated with the environmentally

         20  preferable option, offered as simply a matter of

         21  identifying and seeking out such products.

         22                 The federal government, for example,

         23  requires all federal agencies to purchase goods with

         24  a minimum percentage of recovered material,

         25  according to guidelines developed by EPA.
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          2                 In addition, federal agencies are

          3  required by Executive Order 13101 and federal

          4  acquisition regulations to assess and give

          5  preference to those projects and services that are

          6  environmentally preferable.

          7                 Beyond this, some of the reasons for

          8  choosing environmentally preferable cleaning

          9  products, are cleaning products are released into

         10  the environment routinely during normal usage,

         11  volatile organic compounds evaporate, parts are

         12  rinsed down a drain as part of the cleaning process

         13  and from the sponges, brushes and mops.

         14                 Janitorial staff and others who

         15  perform cleaning can be exposed to concentrated

         16  cleaning products.

         17                 Nationwide, approximately 2.8 million

         18  people work in this field. Certain ingredients in

         19  cleaning products can present hazard concerns to

         20  expose populations, that is skin and eye irritation,

         21  and workers products are not used properly or

         22  toxicity to aquatic species and waters receiving

         23  inadequately-treated waste.

         24                 Good sewage treatment effectively

         25  reduces or removes most of these cleaning products
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          2  but it's still a concern.

          3                 For example, common surfactant

          4  ingredients in cleaners have been shown in

          5  laboratory studies to function as endocrine

          6  disrupters, causing adverse reproductive effects in

          7  certain types of wildlife exposed.

          8                 The impacts of phosphates and

          9  nitrogen from cleaning products in contributing to

         10  algae growth that fouls water bodies have been known

         11  for decades.

         12                 Volatile organic compounds in

         13  cleaning products can affect indoor air quality and

         14  also contribute to smog formation in outdoor air.

         15                 For example, general-purpose cleaning

         16  products have been estimated to contribute

         17  approximately 8 percent of the total nonvehicular

         18  volatile organic compound emissions in California

         19  and the Northeast.

         20                 In fact, New York, New Jersey and

         21  several other nearby states have opted to regulate

         22  the amount of VOCs in cleaning products sold in

         23  their states to help achieve air quality standards.

         24                 Finally, cleaning products are among

         25  the most frequently reported products involved in
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          2  poisonings reported to Poison Control Centers

          3  nationally.

          4                 Closer to home, I would like to

          5  relate two examples of EPA's experiences with

          6  Environmentally Preferable Purchasing.

          7                 When EPA Region 2 was located in 26

          8  Federal Plaza, just a few blocks north, the building

          9  had the familiar antiseptic odors that we took for

         10  granted as smelling clean. Sometimes it was a little

         11  strong, but most of us would get used to it pretty

         12  quickly. Besides, it wasn't nearly as bad as EPA's

         13  former Headquarters office, on M Street Southwest in

         14  Washington, DC, where emissions from copiers, office

         15  products, cleaners, plastics and rugs combined with

         16  poor ventilation to create what became known as a

         17  sick buildings. And you might remember, that got a

         18  lot of press, that particular issue.

         19                 In the mid-1990s, EPA's New York

         20  office moved into our new building at 290 Broadway.

         21  We began using Green Seal certified eco-friendly

         22  cleaning products. In preparing for these comments

         23  today, we spoke to the head of custodial services

         24  for the building to get his impression about our

         25  switch to environmentally-friendly products.
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          2                 Without hesitation, his first comment

          3  was that since we switched to eco-friendly products,

          4  the numerous complaints he used to receive about

          5  cleaning odors had stopped.

          6                 When we asked if there's a difference

          7  in effectiveness of the new cleaning products, he

          8  said, "no. The only difference was the complaints

          9  ended."

         10                 I understand that you may no longer

         11  be addressing green power today, but I would like to

         12  touch briefly on the subject. There is a clear link

         13  between our burning of fossil fuels and a wide range

         14  of environmental problems, including smog, soot, air

         15  toxics and acid rain. While much progress has been

         16  made in controlling pollution generated by burning

         17  fossil fuels, other sources of energy that

         18  completely avoid such pollution have become

         19  available for purchase by consumers.

         20                 At EPA Region 2, we're putting our

         21  money where our mouth is. Several years ago a

         22  decision was made to invest in alternative power

         23  sources at our facilities, in New York, Edison, New

         24  Jersey, and San Juan, Puerto Rico.

         25                 At 290 Broadway alone, by switching

                                                            78

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  from fossil fuels to wind power, we reduced annual

          3  carbon dioxide emissions by 20 million pounds,

          4  sulfur dioxide by 100,000 pounds, and nitrogen

          5  oxides by 40,000 pounds. While this is progress, it

          6  would be much more significant if multiplied by the

          7  participation of more buildings in the City and

          8  beyond.

          9                 EPA recognizes that there are many

         10  considerations in deliberating the bills before you

         11  today. Naturally, like any other consumer or

         12  business decision, the City agencies will have to

         13  find the environmentally friendly products that best

         14  suit their needs and procurement requirements.

         15  Thankfully, there are a lot of choices available in

         16  the marketplace, many offered by familiar

         17  manufacturers and suppliers.

         18                 There are also numerous information

         19  resources available to guide you with your

         20  decisions, including the following. I won't read the

         21  websites to you, but EPA has a very good website. US

         22  General Services Administration, Green Seal, Inform,

         23  King County Washington, that's the home of Seattle,

         24  Santa Monica, other areas they are doing things,

         25  Massachusetts, Minnesota, and I'm sure there's many
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          2  more.

          3                 Again, thank you, Mr. Chairman, and

          4  members of the Committee for inviting me today.

          5  Please let me know if you have any questions or if

          6  EPA can be of assistance on this important

          7  initiative.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Mr. Gillespie.

          9                 MR. GILLESPIE: I have no additional

         10  comments.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So you're

         12  together?

         13                 Well, I want to thank you for coming

         14  in and listening to the testimony of our Chief

         15  Procurement Officer for the City of New York, and

         16  listening to the dialogue between her and members of

         17  the City Council.

         18                 It appears by listening to you and

         19  reading your testimony that we're moving in the

         20  right direction. And I'm glad that you had the

         21  opportunity to speak to the head of your janitorial

         22  staff for coming here because that speaks volumes in

         23  itself, and I'm glad that you gave us information

         24  that we're going to share with the City of New York,

         25  as to information where they can go, if they haven't
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          2  gone there already. I assume they have. But, you

          3  know, you're not supposed to assume anything, so

          4  we're going to make sure they get a copy of your

          5  testimony. I'm sure that the City of New York has

          6  representatives here that will also take it and look

          7  at it to see whether or not they could I guess move

          8  in the direction of the federal government.

          9                 Let me just ask you if you have any

         10  knowledge of this. In using green cleaning products,

         11  has EPA or the staff that use these products,

         12  encountered any problems? Especially considering the

         13  concerns that the Administration raised, such as

         14  challenges in the product mixing or anything else

         15  that you may be aware of?

         16                 MR. GILLESPIE: I'm not familiar with

         17  any of the problems that staff have had, the

         18  janitorial staff have had with the mixing. We

         19  actually have a rather sophisticated

         20  computer-operated chemical-mixing system. When I

         21  spoke with the Director of Janitorial Services he

         22  showed me the system and it's all computerized.

         23                 But in terms of the effectiveness of

         24  the products. Again, I think his overall comment was

         25  that the environmentally friendly cleaning products

                                                            81

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  are equally effective and that the simple best

          3  management practice of cleaning something up right

          4  away far surpasses any added value of a

          5  non-environmentally friendly cleaning product. He

          6  said that the environmentally friendly or otherwise,

          7  both sets of cleaning products would work equally

          8  poorly if you were to ignore say a spill for a

          9  couple of days.

         10                 MR. FILIPPELLI: We can get you more

         11  information, your staff more information on this

         12  topic or maybe put you in touch with the people in

         13  our building.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We appreciate

         15  that.

         16                 Any questions, Dr. Stewart.

         17                 I'm going to say that you indicated

         18  in your testimony, as far as the wind, what do you

         19  have? Do you own your own building at 290 Broadway?

         20  Do you lease how many floors? Because you obviously

         21  have moved in a direction that by using wind power,

         22  can you just, I'm not aware of that, can you just

         23  explain to me?

         24                 MR. FILIPPELLI: 290 Broadway is a

         25  30-story building. EPA has about 15 floors in that
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          2  building. We purchase wind. We don't actually have

          3  any wind-power facilities that we own or are on the

          4  building itself, but we purchase wind off the power,

          5  wind energy off the power grid. So it's hard to say

          6  if any of that, you know, the wind energy is

          7  generated elsewhere, it's hard to say for sure that

          8  any of that actual power generated at those remote

          9  locations winds up at our building. But by

         10  purchasing that wind energy, we're helping to allow

         11  wind facilities to operate and contribute to the

         12  regional power grid or the national power grid.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And in essence

         14  saving the environment.

         15                 MR. FILIPPELLI: Yes, environmental

         16  benefits.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Are you saving

         18  money also?

         19                 MR. FILIPPELLI: That I can't tell

         20  you, but we could get back to you on that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. But

         22  clearly from an environmental point of view. It has

         23  a very, very positive impact.

         24                 MR. FILIPPELLI: Yes. Again, in

         25  Manhattan it's part of one building.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Um-hmm.

          3                 MR. FILIPPELLI: EPA nationwide, I

          4  believe, is one of the largest users of wind energy

          5  in the nation. I believe it's the fourth largest

          6  user of wind energy.

          7                 But again, that information is

          8  available is listed in the testimony, green energy

          9  wind site, green energy site, and if you do a little

         10  -- the sites are always a little harder to use than

         11  they appear to be, but there is a list there in one

         12  of the side bars of wind purchases nationwide, and

         13  the EPA is pretty high on that list.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, Mr.

         15  Filippelli, and Mr. Gillespie, thank you for coming

         16  in, and we appreciate your testimony.

         17                 MR. FILIPPELLI: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And now we're

         19  going to hear from representatives of the NRDC.

         20  Yerina Mugica, Cameron Lory, L-o-r-y, and Jason

         21  Babbie, from the New York Public Interest Research

         22  Group. And Cameron is from INFORM.

         23                 Would you all just state your name

         24  and the company or business that you're working with

         25  and who you're representing?
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          2                 We're going to start with Yerina.

          3  Pull the mic up, please, nice and close, so you

          4  don't have to strain.

          5                 MS. MUGICA: Thank you. My name is

          6  Yerina Mugica, and I'm from the Natural Resources

          7  Defense Council.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Can you just

          9  identify yourself next, please.

         10                 MS. LORY: My name is Cameron Lory. I

         11  work with INFORM. I'm a senior associate in Chemical

         12  Hazards Prevention there.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what's

         14  INFORM? Is that an acronym?

         15                 MS. LORY: No actually, it is not. It

         16  is a national non-profit outreach and research

         17  organization.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         19                 MR. BABBIE: Jason K. Babbie with New

         20  York Public Interest Research Group, NYPIRG.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. You

         22  may begin.

         23                 MS. MUGICA: Good afternoon, Mr.

         24  Chairman and members of the Committee. My name is

         25  Yerina Mugica, and I'm a Research Associate with
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          2  NRDC.

          3                 As you may know, NRDC is a national

          4  non-profit organization that has worked on New York

          5  City energy recycling, public health and other

          6  environmental issues for more than 30 years.

          7                 I am pleased to be here today to

          8  offer strong support for this package of legislation

          9  that would significantly strengthen the City's

         10  purchasing practices.

         11                 Our written testimony addresses each

         12  of the five bills that are the subject of today's

         13  hearing. My comments this afternoon will focus

         14  primarily on Intro. 536-A, which requires City

         15  agencies to purchase energy-efficient products,

         16  including efficient computers.

         17                 Because of the economic environmental

         18  costs, electricity usage by the City of New York,

         19  this bill would have tremendous benefits for the

         20  City and of the New Yorkers.

         21                 NRDC strongly supports Intro. 536-A,

         22  which if enacted would reduce New York City's

         23  electric bill, create significant economic benefits

         24  for the City, and reduce the emission of harmful air

         25  pollution from power plants.
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          2                 While Intro. 536-A includes important

          3  provisions for a range of products, we focus in

          4  particular today on the importance and practicality

          5  of Intro. 536-A's requirement that New York City

          6  purchase energy-efficient computers.

          7                 Why is energy efficiency important?

          8  As you probably know, power plants that generate

          9  electricity are one of the largest sources of many

         10  key pollutants.

         11                 The United States power plants

         12  produce 40 percent of global warming pollution,

         13  one-third of toxic mercury emissions, two-thirds of

         14  acid rain causing pollution, and two-thirds of smog

         15  causing nitrogen oxide pollution.

         16                 As a result, when we avoid power

         17  plant pollution, by using more efficient products

         18  and electronic equipment, we lower electricity

         19  bills, we improve air quality, strengthen the

         20  electric grid, help avoid blackouts, preserve

         21  natural resources and encourage energy independence

         22  by using less oil, gas and coal.

         23                 Why focus on computer efficiency? A

         24  growing percentage of electricity used in the United

         25  States is now the results of computers and other
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          2  types of electronic equipment.

          3                 Nationally consumer electronics

          4  represents ten to 15 percent of residential

          5  electricity use and this percentage is growing both

          6  nationally and in New York City.

          7                 This past summer New York City set a

          8  new record for all-time peak electric demand. Con

          9  Edison attributed this growth in electricity usage

         10  and peak demand not only on hot weather and the use

         11  of air conditioners, but also due to the increased

         12  use of electronic equipment.

         13                 In a report from Con Edison, they

         14  stated that, quote, para use is rising because

         15  customers are using more computers, printers,

         16  scanners, cell phone chargers and other equipment.

         17                 Why is the computer power supply

         18  important?

         19                 Intro. 536-A correctly focuses on

         20  procurement of computers that meet specified

         21  standards for the efficiency of the internal power

         22  supply that is located within a desk top computer.

         23                 All personal computers and desk top

         24  drive servers contain power supplies which convert

         25  high voltage, AC electricity to low voltage DC
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          2  electricity used by the computer.

          3                 Currently computer power supplies are

          4  highly inefficient. Typically PC power supplies are

          5  sized to provide between 200 to 600 watts of DC

          6  output, but can require up to 300 to 850 watts of AC

          7  input. The difference between this input and output

          8  is converted to heat waste.

          9                 These power supplies typically waste

         10  about 30 to 40 percent of electricity that passes

         11  through them.

         12                 In office buildings, much of this

         13  usage occurs on or near the time of peak electric

         14  demand, increasing demand charges and the need for

         15  additional power plants.

         16                 With more than 55 million new PCs

         17  sold each year in the US and roughly 224 million in

         18  use, the potential energy savings for more efficient

         19  power supplies is huge. Installing the most

         20  efficient commercially available power supply in

         21  each PC sold in mid-2005 to 2006 would save about 19

         22  billion with lifetime kilowatt hours and reduce

         23  national energy bills by nearly $1.6 billion.

         24                 Further, the national carbon dioxide

         25  savings would be about 10 million tons per year,
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          2  which is the equivalent of removing a million cars

          3  from the road.

          4                 What are the economics of procuring

          5  efficient computers? The additional up-front cost of

          6  efficient power supply is low. Incremental costs at

          7  the manufacturer level is estimated at less than $5

          8  for desk tops, and less than $10 for servers.

          9                 City Council staff has estimated that

         10  over a four-year period, each efficient desk top

         11  computer procured under Intro. 536-A will save the

         12  City approximately $37 on electric bills while each

         13  compliant server will save the City $150.

         14                 Also, the New York State Energy

         15  Research and Development Authority, NYSERDA, is

         16  currently considering a proposal to find a five and

         17  ten-dollar per unit rebates for the very efficient

         18  computer products that New York City is proposing to

         19  procure. This would, of course, further reduce New

         20  York City's up-front cost and make the economics

         21  even more attractive.

         22                 Utilities in Washington, Oregon,

         23  Idaho, Montana, California and Massachusetts already

         24  offer such incentives through a national program

         25  called 80 plus.
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          2                 Changing the power supply in a

          3  desktop PC is the simplest way to automatically

          4  improve its efficiency in all operating modes. No

          5  other changes are needed to the mother board CPU or

          6  any other key components. Manufacturers simply

          7  procure a different drop-in power supply from their

          8  vendors than they are currently purchasing.

          9                 As noted above, this simple change

         10  can reduce computer energy use by 15 to 25 percent,

         11  reduce air conditioning loads by keeping computer

         12  systems by generating excess waste heat, and defer

         13  the need for costly new power plants.

         14                 Are computer power supplies available

         15  that meet Intro. 536-A's requirement? Yes.

         16                 According to ECO's consulting, at

         17  least five power supply manufacturers already offer

         18  qualified desk top computer power supplies that meet

         19  the 80 percent efficiency requirements of Intro.

         20  536-A. This includes two of the largest computer

         21  power supply manufacturers in the world, High Pro

         22  and Enhance.

         23                 We also know that NRDC has been

         24  working with a group of leading Wall Street firms

         25  over the past year to assist them in developing
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          2  procurement specifications for energy-efficient

          3  computer equipment.

          4                 These firms are interested in

          5  purchasing computer and servers with power supplies

          6  that are even more efficient than those under Intro.

          7  536-A's procurement requirement. They are interested

          8  in this because it makes economic sense. Not only

          9  reducing electricity bills, but also reducing

         10  heating and cooling capacity needs, operating costs

         11  and storage space needs.

         12                 In addition, Intel, the giant

         13  computer micro processor manufacturer, is also

         14  working with NRDC to support more efficient computer

         15  power supplies.

         16                 Last year Intel announced new

         17  efficiency specifications for power supplies that

         18  are the same as those in Intro. 536-A.

         19                 Computer manufacturers welcomed to

         20  this announcement, for example, Bryant Hilton, a

         21  spokesman for Dell, stated that this, quote, is

         22  definitely something we would be interested in,

         23  because we know we could pass on the cost benefits

         24  to customers, as well as the environmental benefits.

         25                 Computers with efficient power
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          2  supplies are already available. A Seattle-based

          3  school recently procured 160 computers that meet the

          4  specifications in Intro. 536-A.

          5                 In addition, greater volumes can

          6  quickly be brought to market. Independent

          7  consultants estimate that computer manufacturers can

          8  have a finished power supply design ready for sale

          9  in quantity in less than ten months from when they

         10  begin the process.

         11                 And many manufacturers have already

         12  begun this process, so the lead time would be even

         13  less.

         14                 Therefore, there is no need to delay

         15  the effective date of Intro 536-A, particularly

         16  given the clause in Intro. 534-A which allows these

         17  procurement requirements to be waived if there are

         18  fewer than three manufacturers that produce

         19  compliant equipment.

         20                 Given that, in conclusion, NRDC

         21  strongly believes that procurement proposals before

         22  the Council should be advanced for both

         23  environmental and fiscal reasons. If enacted, many

         24  of these laws would be among the most progressive in

         25  the nation, setting an example for other cities and
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          2  jurisdictions.

          3                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          4  testify today, and I'd be happy to take any

          5  questions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Cameron, from

          7  INFORM.

          8                 MS. LORY: Thank you, sir. It's always

          9  great to follow NRDC on energy because they were

         10  excellent in their analysis of energy, and I'd like

         11  to also say that the same kind of thinking applies

         12  to the lighting portion of 536-A, the requirement

         13  for the use of energy efficiency of fluorescent

         14  lamps. Obviously any energy of efficient technology

         15  is going to produce less, less heat and more light

         16  and is going to save us money in electrical costs

         17  and cooling costs.

         18                 That particular piece I think is

         19  interesting in the way that it builds on the passing

         20  of the green building, the adoption of the green

         21  building introduction several weeks ago, because

         22  that bill already requires new construction use,

         23  energy efficient lighting, so there shouldn't be any

         24  break in that relationship between existing

         25  buildings and older buildings needing to use energy
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          2  efficient replacement technology.

          3                 Because I'm particularly interested

          4  in hazardous materials, because I come from the

          5  chemical hazards prevention program, I'm really

          6  excited about some of the measures that are being

          7  addressed in Intro. 544-A, particularly some of

          8  these toxins which are either extremely common or

          9  extremely toxic to humans. For instance, in mercury

         10  lighting and all of the energy efficient mercury

         11  lighting that we use, it contains small amount of

         12  mercury. They all contain small amounts of mercury.

         13  Extremely important to regulate that and to control

         14  that because it is a toxin in its own, and which the

         15  EPA says that it is a toxin of -- there is no safe

         16  level of exposure, so when we're talking about small

         17  quantities of toxins and computer equipment or

         18  lighting equipment or wherever it is, it needs to be

         19  reduced and controlled as much as possible.

         20                 And because indoor air pollution is

         21  so expensive in this country, costing more than $50

         22  billion health care, absenteeism, lost production

         23  and lost revenue, that's according to the EPA,

         24  limiting the VOCs of interior architectural

         25  materials is extraordinarily important.
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          2                 PVC, poly-vinyl chloride during its

          3  entire lifecycle is an extremely toxic lifecycle, in

          4  it's manufacture, use and disposal. There are

          5  associated, produced and released. Also, there is

          6  toxins added to it as a product to make it a usable

          7  product.

          8                 So, I think it's enormously

          9  interesting to see the City Council willing to take

         10  a really bold step to really look at a product and

         11  to create strategies to reduce our dependence on

         12  this extremely toxic material.

         13                 And the electronics piece of it. I

         14  have relied on one of my colleagues of INFORM, Lloyd

         15  Hicks, who is a top person on electronics, so I'm

         16  going to read what he wrote for my testimony today,

         17  that on electronics, it takes a very positive step

         18  to substantially reduce the toxicity of electronic

         19  products purchased for use by New York City by

         20  requiring compliance with the European directive and

         21  the reduction of hazardous substances.

         22                 It is also a positive step to require

         23  electronic products to be returned to the

         24  manufacturer or third party for reuse or recycling.

         25                 We find the provision is unclear on
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          2  who the responsible party is to provide financing

          3  for the collection and recycling at the end of life

          4  products.

          5                 We believe that the manufacturer or a

          6  third-party under contract by the manufacturer

          7  should be responsible for providing take-back

          8  services, quote, at no cost, unquote, to New York

          9  City, holding manufacturers fiscally or physically

         10  responsible for the take-back and reuse, recycling

         11  of their products provides an incentive for them to

         12  design products that are less wasteful and easier

         13  and cheaper to recycle.

         14                 I think it would be a great thing to

         15  combine energy efficiency and take-back and toxic

         16  reductions with computers.

         17                 At INFORM we have a very strong

         18  program called "Cleaning For Health." We're active

         19  all through the northeast in helping everything from

         20  the State government, we're actually assisting OGS

         21  to develop the State procurement standards for

         22  environmentally preferable less toxic cleaners. I've

         23  worked closely with counsel here on developing the

         24  legislation providing information on the legislation

         25  522-A. We have worked with counties and districts
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          2  all over New York, New Jersey, New England, and we

          3  have found enormously that what we -- I'm sorry,

          4  sir. We found, when this was brought forward there

          5  was a lot of staff concern, administrative staff and

          6  custodial staff that they find it challenging on

          7  first examination. They've been using the same

          8  products and practices for 30 years, and then groups

          9  come in and say, you're not using the right

         10  products, you're doing the wrong thing, and I think

         11  that it's fairly difficult, for that reason, to make

         12  the transition, because for them it is enormous.

         13  They take their jobs enormously seriously. They

         14  understand the importance of protecting people by

         15  keeping the buildings clean and free of dust.

         16                 What we found is that the

         17  manufacturers, most of the major manufacturers in

         18  the United States offer preferable cleaning

         19  products, and they also provide excellent training

         20  available in all sorts of languages. I think one

         21  manufacturer, I think Spartan, recently now provides

         22  training materials and Croation, as one of the newer

         23  languages that they allow, and that generally pretty

         24  much across the board, the custodial staff are

         25  properly trained in the use of environmentally
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          2  preferable cleaners. They're very supportive of the

          3  project. You get buy-in from them.

          4                 And also, I think it's also important

          5  to make it very clear to people in this training

          6  that by doing this, by changing to environmentally

          7  preferable cleaning products, we are reducing, we

          8  are doing this, making their health a priority. It's

          9  important that we protect these people from

         10  asthmogens, carcinogens, respiratory irritants,

         11  mutagens, and we're asking an entire workforce to

         12  use things that are detrimental to their health, and

         13  to get in the support of the various constituents

         14  that actually use these products, I think it is

         15  important to understand that this is to protect

         16  them.

         17                 My only, the only provision that

         18  INFORM regrets did not make it into the final

         19  introduction of on green clean products is on

         20  antimicrobial soaps. The handsoaps, by requiring

         21  that all City agencies use antimicrobial soaps we

         22  are actually going against the Centers for Disease

         23  Control, questions the benefits of using these

         24  antimicrobial handsoaps to reduce infection because

         25  of the added human health risks and costs associated
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          2  with them.

          3                 They are also requiring that

          4  everybody expose themselves equally to a toxin that

          5  is probably unnecessary. In reality, anything that

          6  is a sanitizer, or a disinfectant, they have very

          7  specific places where they need to be used. We tend

          8  to, as a society, to overuse products that are by

          9  definition toxic. I mean, they were made to

         10  eliminate organisms, so they are therefore by

         11  definition toxic.

         12                 Instead of using them in a limited

         13  and appropriate fashion, we tend to overuse them.

         14  So, I am absolutely thrilled and I encourage the

         15  City Council to continue to be a leader, national

         16  leader in protecting human health by going forward

         17  with the environmentally preferable purchasing

         18  bills, and I thank you very much for giving us this

         19  opportunity to speak.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Jason, how do

         21  you pronounce your last name?

         22                 MR. BABBIE: Bab-bee.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Bab-bee. Okay,

         24  Mr. Babbie.

         25                 MR. BABBIE: Good afternoon. Thank
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          2  you. I'm Jason Babbie. I'm the Senior Environmental

          3  Policy Analyst for the New York Public Interest

          4  Research Group, NYPIRG, and environmental consumer

          5  organization, statewide organization, that has its

          6  headquarters here in Lower Manhattan.

          7                 I'd like to thank Chairperson Jackson

          8  and other members of the Committee on Contracts for

          9  the opportunity to testify here today on this suite

         10  of bills that will create environmental criteria for

         11  various products in New York City's purchases.

         12                 I'm going to read an abbreviated

         13  version of my written testimony. NYPIRG supports

         14  setting up these environmental criteria, and setting

         15  the purchasing practices to make New York City a

         16  healthier place to work and live, and we also think

         17  this sends very strong market signals to

         18  manufacturers through the City's very large

         19  purchasing power.

         20                 The Environmental Purchasing Director

         21  and Officers think this team is appropriate to be

         22  setting up the standards, and holding agencies

         23  accountable. I think one of the best things that can

         24  help get at maybe some of the issues that we talked

         25  about earlier today, is the creation of the vendor
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          2  catalogue. I think that really helps to streamline

          3  and answer a lot of the questions that are out there

          4  and makes it much easier for those making the

          5  purchases to easily open a book, know what they can

          6  and cannot purchase and I think it can get out a lot

          7  of the potential apprehension or negative attitude

          8  that can come about this.

          9                 There are a couple of areas within

         10  534-A that I just want to say that maybe we could,

         11  you know, tighten up a little bit; one of which was

         12  the waiver for spaces on the maintenance for less

         13  than half the building or on alterations of offices

         14  less than 15,000 square feet. Largely for two

         15  reasons, one of which is of course we can get larger

         16  environmental benefits.

         17                 But also I think it helps send a good

         18  signal to small and medium-sized businesses.

         19                 I think one of the other really big

         20  benefits of this package of bills is not only the

         21  direct environmental benefit and the leadership of

         22  New York City, but demonstrating that to other

         23  businesses throughout New York City that they can do

         24  this too, and so it would be a nice signal to show

         25  to small- and medium-sized businesses throughout New
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          2  York State that they can also have environmental

          3  preferred purchasing practices.

          4                 The two bills on energy policy are

          5  vitally important. NRDC laid out a number of good

          6  reasons, but we know that New York City has very

          7  serious air quality problems, and it affects pockets

          8  of our community in particular.

          9                 We know that the impacts from power

         10  plants are greatest closest to its source. So,

         11  generating less dirty power in New York City

         12  obviously helps the communities that surround that,

         13  surround those, and global warming has many multiple

         14  impacts.

         15                 On 536-A, you know, energy

         16  efficiency, and energy efficiency practices are

         17  something that we continually turn to as a State and

         18  as a City when times get tough, whether it's through

         19  generation problems, transmission problems, and, you

         20  know, higher cost, so this is something we should

         21  definitely be implementing.

         22                 On 546-A, I guess it's sort of being

         23  delayed. But although State Comptroller Hevesi did

         24  say that New York State should pass some of the

         25  changes that may be some of the hold up here, being
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          2  able to purchase power at slightly more expensive

          3  rates, and I think that that would be important.

          4                 Also, I think one of the things that

          5  Comptroller Hevesi found in a report that was

          6  released earlier this year is the green, that the

          7  State Renewal Portfolio Standard will generate

          8  23,000 jobs in New York State, so we know that

          9  buying green can work and it can provide us a better

         10  economy.

         11                 Laura Heit, who is a Senior

         12  Environmental Associate with NYPIRG, had prepared

         13  other comments on the toxic side of things. I think,

         14  just quickly, on 544-A, that we think that inclusion

         15  of PVC is great. We would encourage New York City to

         16  maybe look at the New York City Pesticide Reduction

         17  Law, and use and trying to expand that to use what

         18  EPA says is "known likely probable or possible

         19  carcinogens" and California's Proposition 65, which

         20  deals with developmental toxins, to again widen the

         21  scope.

         22                 You know, the 545-A, this is cost

         23  saving, as well as environmental preferable, and

         24  should be done. And 552-A, we support green

         25  products, and in some cases we may want to go and
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          2  look beyond Green Seal.

          3                 Don't take any of the suggestions for

          4  tightening to be anything but our support for this

          5  in moving forward, we just always are, sort of our

          6  nature to provide justice solutions on how to move

          7  forward, but we recommend the City Council move

          8  forward with these suite of bills. We think it is

          9  important. Thank you for the opportunity to testify.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

         11  all three of you for coming in and giving your

         12  thoughts on these particular matters. I think we're

         13  clearly getting all perspective. We're going to be

         14  hearing from industry people next, and so we're

         15  going to be listening to everyone, and hopefully

         16  we'll come up with some bills that will be better

         17  for New York City.

         18                 So, thank you for coming in.

         19                 Next, Sarah Balog with the Consumer

         20  Electronics Association, and Steve Rosario from the

         21  American Plastics Council, and Ken Salaets. Ken from

         22  the Information Technology Industry Council. Is Ken

         23  here?

         24                 MR. SALAETS: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How do you
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          2  pronounce your last name, Ken?

          3                 MR. SALAETS: Sal-etz.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sal-etz. Thank

          5  you. Come forward.

          6                 I'm sorry for the delay. And I

          7  appreciate your patience. And I know that if you've

          8  been here for the duration of the hearing, you've

          9  heard all of the testimony.

         10                 Would you just introduce yourselves,

         11  and who you represent, and you can begin your

         12  testimony. Start with the young lady first.

         13                 MS. BALOG: Certainly. Thank you,

         14  Chairman Jackson. My name is Sarah Balog, from

         15  Consumer Electronics Association.

         16                 MR. ROSARIO: Steve Rosario, of the

         17  American Plastics Council.

         18                 MR. SALAETS: Ken Salaets, with the

         19  Information Technology Industry Council in

         20  Washington, D.C.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Welcome.

         22                 You may begin, Sarah.

         23                 MS. BALOG: Thank you, Chairman

         24  Jackson, and members of the Contracts Committee for

         25  the opportunity to testify today, regarding proposed
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          2  ordinances 534-A and 536-A and 544-A.

          3                 The Consumer Electronics Association

          4  or CEA, appreciates the opportunity to submit its

          5  views on these pieces of proposed legislation.

          6                 CEA represents more than 2,000

          7  companies involved in the design, development,

          8  manufacturing, distribution and integration of

          9  audio, video, in-vehicle electronics, wireless and

         10  landline communications, information technology,

         11  home networking, multi-media and accessory products,

         12  as well as related services that are sold through

         13  consumer channels.

         14                 CEA also produces the nation's

         15  largest annual trade event, the International

         16  Consumer Electronics show, each January in Las

         17  Vegas.

         18                 CEA has submitted letters to each

         19  contract committee member, detailing our views on

         20  each of these ordinances, and so I will only briefly

         21  mention a few points about each bill.

         22                 With regard to 534-A, CEA applauds

         23  the efforts of the Council to encourage

         24  environmentally responsible procurement policies.

         25  CEA supports reasonable market-driven procurement
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          2  policies, as long as they are consistent in

          3  application.

          4                 CEA encourages the Committee to

          5  revise the language of 534-A so that it mirrors the

          6  EPA's Electronic Product Environmental Assessment

          7  Tool or EPEAT, which is a national program for

          8  purchasing and comparing eco-friendly products.

          9                 With regard to 536-A, we agree with

         10  the focus on the Energy Start Program. In fact, the

         11  Energy Star procurement requirements are the

         12  strength of this legislation.

         13                 However, there are two provisions

         14  which are counter-productive for energy savings, and

         15  potentially harmful to New York City agencies, City

         16  services, and in addition to our members.

         17                 First, we believe that there should

         18  be an amendment to 536-A that removes the provision

         19  which ties the City of New York to problematic

         20  regulatory provisions in the State of California.

         21                 California's appliance-efficiency

         22  regulations, which were cited in 536-A, have

         23  recently been amended by the California Energy

         24  Commission. However, as both California regulators

         25  and our industry have discovered there are
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          2  fundamental and significant problems with several

          3  provisions related to consumer audio and video

          4  products and external power supplies.

          5                 Unless addressed, these California

          6  regulations are likely to have a negative impact on

          7  product safety, products availability, innovation

          8  and product features desired by businesses and

          9  consumers.

         10                 Our second concern is with the

         11  Section of 536-A that specifies minimum energy

         12  efficiency standards for "any desktop computer or

         13  desktop-derived server containing an internally

         14  mounted power supply."

         15                 From an industry perspective, these

         16  requirements are not only technically unreasonable

         17  and inappropriate, but also unnecessary.

         18                 Computers, as well as computer

         19  monitors and other computer peripheral devices are

         20  already covered by EPA's Energy Star Program, which

         21  this legislation addresses with new procurement

         22  requirements, which we support.

         23                 The Consumer Electronics Industry is

         24  dedicated to the design, production and marketing of

         25  energy-efficient products that provide consumers
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          2  with a range of product features at competitive

          3  prices.

          4                 The industry is already a strong

          5  participant in the Energy Star Program, which covers

          6  all major categories of consumer electronics and

          7  office equipment.

          8                 In summary, the removal of section

          9  6-310(c) and (d) would address both of our concerns

         10  about 536-A.

         11                 Finally, with regard to 544-A, CEA

         12  believes that electronics recycling is a national

         13  issue that requires a national solution. State level

         14  and local level take-back requirements are extremely

         15  difficult for global companies to meet. Nearly all

         16  of our members distribute products on a regional

         17  basis and would have a very difficult time

         18  pinpointing sales into New York City specifically.

         19                 Businesses and brands also come and

         20  go in the consumer electronics industry.

         21  Essentially, take-back approach is a "promise to

         22  pay" or a "promise to act" at a later date when the

         23  product reaches the end of its life.

         24                 If those companies are no longer in

         25  business, the burden for recycling their products
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          2  will fall on other companies and perhaps the

          3  government.

          4                 CEA strongly urges the rejection of a

          5  location approach to consumer electronics recycling

          6  which would create a patchwork of myriad different

          7  regulations across the country.

          8                 Mr. Chairman, CEA's member companies

          9  are committed to product stewardship, environmental

         10  design and recycling. Every year, our products are

         11  more energy efficient, use fewer substances of

         12  potential environmental concern, and make design

         13  improvements to facilitate disassembly and

         14  recycling. CEA will continue to work with the

         15  Council and governments at every level to address

         16  these issues.

         17                 Thank you again for the opportunity

         18  to provide the views of the consumer electronics

         19  industry about these proposals, and I'll be happy to

         20  answer any questions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         22                 Mr. Rosario.

         23                 MR. ROSARIO: Good afternoon, Chairman

         24  Jackson, members of the Committee and staff. First,

         25  thank you very much for the opportunity to be here
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          2  and speak on these bills.

          3                 Secondly, we do want to commend the

          4  Council for the work that you are doing in this

          5  area. Certainly it parallels much of the work that

          6  the industry has been doing for the past ten to 15

          7  years in energy efficiency recycled content and

          8  resource conservation.

          9                 Secondly, we don't oppose the bill

         10  per se. My objective here this afternoon is to point

         11  out the number of areas in two bills that we do have

         12  some very serious concerns. And I won't read my

         13  testimony, I will briefly summarize those points.

         14                 Intro. 544-A, a couple of sections.

         15  The first deals with the PVC, the purchase of PVC

         16  products. You heard the allegations earlier that

         17  they're hazardous and toxic and all of that. Well,

         18  obviously, we're not going to agree with that

         19  statement, and we very much disagree.

         20                 If you look at PVC products, let me

         21  give you a few examples of what some of them are.

         22  White reflective solar roofs have been compared to

         23  solar roofs and garden roofs. Vinyl siding. I grew

         24  up here in Brooklyn and Queens and back in the early

         25  eighties, my parents put vinyl siding on their house

                                                            112

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  and it's still there. IV bags in tubes that are used

          3  I'm sure in many hospitals in the City. Vinyl wrap

          4  which is used to protect our food, more commonly

          5  known as Saran wrap, which you probably have in your

          6  own home.

          7                 So, these are the kind of products

          8  that people would tend to want you to believe that

          9  are hazardous and toxic, but we think that that is

         10  absolutely false.

         11                 So, we would look to the Council to

         12  take a leadership role. These products have been in

         13  commerce from 35 to 40 years, many of them,

         14  especially those where there is human contact are

         15  FDA approved.

         16                 On the issue of formaldehyde and

         17  VOCs. Formaldehyde, according to the Rug and Carpet

         18  Institute, has not been used in carpeting for years.

         19  So, it is not an issue and we would look to the

         20  Council to have that removed.

         21                 On the issue of styrene, according to

         22  current studies, and some that have been done on

         23  children, which are a sensitive population, that

         24  exposure to styrene would have to be 560 times

         25  greater than current limits to have any real impact.
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          2  And part of that reason is because styrene, once it

          3  is exposed to air, immediately dissipates.

          4                 There again is an issue where styrene

          5  is not an issue.

          6                 The last point that I'd like to make

          7  concerns Intro. 534, where you talk about brominated

          8  flame retardants. And there again, this was added as

          9  a part of the EPA list here through your local

         10  introduction without any real evidence or scientific

         11  facts for making these allegations.

         12                 Much has been done in the various

         13  states on brominated flame retardants, including New

         14  York which passed legislation, I believe it was

         15  earlier this year, or last year.

         16                 The EU, the European Union, has been

         17  doing an immense amount of work where industry has

         18  been working with the EU on brominated flame

         19  retardants, and we would be more than willing to

         20  give the Council a presentation on what's going on

         21  here in the United States, and in the EU.

         22                 There again, we would request that

         23  the Council seriously removing BFRs from the section

         24  of the bill and giving us an opportunity to educate

         25  you on these issues.
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          2                 Again, we appreciate the opportunity

          3  to be here, and will answer any questions and make

          4  ourselves available as a resource to the Chair, his

          5  staff and other Council members.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Mr.

          8  Salaets, from the Information Technology Industry

          9  Council.

         10                 MR. SALAETS: There. I think I got it

         11  to work. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the

         12  Committee. It's my pleasure to be here. Again, my

         13  name is Ken Salaets. I'm Director of Government

         14  Relations for ITI, a much easier name to use. We

         15  represent what I like to call the household names of

         16  the IT industry in the United States, including Dell

         17  and Intel, as well as HP, IBM, Apple and I can go

         18  on, we've got 32 members, including everything from

         19  the chip makers to the Internet.

         20                 On the train ride here I had a

         21  statement written out, but I think I'll cut to a

         22  couple of key points. The first time I used a PC was

         23  in 1982. I was a Pact Fundraiser in a congressional

         24  campaign. Since 1982, the computers that you are now

         25  buying in the store or JR around the corner over
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          2  here, are roughly 1,000 times more powerful than the

          3  ones that I was using initially, which essentially

          4  were fancy typewriters.

          5                 Even so, in that period of time, the

          6  energy consumption has largely remained flat for PC

          7  computers. The price has dived, as we all know. You

          8  can buy an amazing amount of power for a reasonable

          9  price.

         10                 Companies have been addressing

         11  efficiency for some time. In fact, in the early

         12  nineties, TI then called Sabima, helped EPA develop

         13  and launch the Energy Star Program. We also helped

         14  negotiate or close the deal with the European union

         15  adoption of the program. We've been there from the

         16  beginning, we negotiate with the EPA on a regular

         17  basis, sometimes they're friendly, sometimes they're

         18  not so friendly negotiations. But there's absolutely

         19  no question that our companies are committed to

         20  energy efficiency and environmental sensitivity for

         21  our products. Many of which actually enable other

         22  abilities in terms of productivity and energy

         23  efficiency.

         24                 There are two areas I want to address

         25  in 536-A in particular. Power management is the
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          2  first, which is essentially the Energy Star program,

          3  at least as it was originally conceived. The second

          4  is the power supply specifications that you've heard

          5  quite a bit about today.

          6                 According to the government research,

          7  roughly one to six percent of the computers in the

          8  marketplace currently have power management enabled.

          9  That is an appalling number. In many cases it may

         10  well be the Achilles heel of the Energy Star program

         11  for at least computer products.

         12                 According to our research and also

         13  that of Eco's Consulting, NRDC and others, if you

         14  were to power manage efficiently and effectively all

         15  the computers in existence, you'd roughly reduce

         16  energy consumption by 70 percent.

         17                 Other numbers we've looked at show

         18  that currently, actually rather than just pulling

         19  this off the top of my head, currently in a

         20  non-power-managed environment, computers are off or

         21  in sleep mode, as we call it, for roughly 30 percent

         22  of the time. They're in what EPA calls the idle mode

         23  for 67 percent of the time and in active use three

         24  percent of the time.

         25                 In a power management environment,
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          2  which this bill contemplates, creates the policy to

          3  accomplish that within New York City, you would be

          4  in off or sleep mode, 67 percent of them, you would

          5  still be in idle mode 30 percent of the time, and

          6  then again active use remains at three percent.

          7                 I'm a bit flustered from some of the

          8  things I heard from the previous panel. Regarding

          9  power management, it is clearly the single most

         10  important way to save energy. It can be achieved in

         11  an installed base. We are already reaching an

         12  agreement with EPA in negotiations on a revision to

         13  the computer MOU to reduce the power management

         14  consumption in standby down to five watts or less.

         15  And, again, my members across the board support that

         16  provision.

         17                 So, for the City Council, for the

         18  Administration, you know, the Administrative

         19  agencies, these are energy savings that can be

         20  achieved at minimal to no cost, using current

         21  technology that's readily available, but the key, as

         22  you would appreciate, Mr. Chairman, is education.

         23                 What we have discovered is, if you

         24  educate and train the individuals, the system

         25  managers as well as the end-users, the actual users
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          2  of the computers, the resistance to using power

          3  management diminishes incredibly.

          4                 Often there is a misunderstanding

          5  about what can be achieved and part of that is

          6  because of problems that occurred before.

          7                 When the power management or sleep

          8  mode was rolled out initially, it looked very good

          9  on paper, it looked very good in laboratories, but

         10  in practical use, there were significant problems.

         11                 Industry has worked with EPA

         12  hand-in-hand, as well as with some of the software

         13  manufacturers, such as Microsoft, to address that

         14  issue.

         15                 In the new Microsoft operating

         16  system, for example, there will be significant

         17  features in that software that will make power

         18  management even more effective than it already is

         19  now, and especially in terms of dealing with some

         20  security updates, software updates and back-up

         21  processes.

         22                 Another way, a simple way to save

         23  energy is to turn off the machine. I have done a

         24  number of projects where I have walked around, I've

         25  worked with my daughter, actually, on a science fair
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          2  project where you walk around and you look at

          3  computers at night, looking in office buildings and

          4  government buildings and you see little, you still

          5  see flying toasters, believe it or not, after all of

          6  these years, but the legislation says eliminate the

          7  screen saver if it interferes with power management.

          8  That is an effective policy. That's something that

          9  we would support.

         10                 So, in effect, all of this energy

         11  saving, significant energy savings and money savings

         12  is right at your fingertips, and this legislation

         13  would enable that and we support that provision.

         14                 The power supply provision, I think a

         15  couple of my companies that were referenced by the

         16  previous panel will be shocked to find out that

         17  they've endorsed the NRDC/80 Plus Program.

         18                 I've only testified before two State

         19  or local bodies in 15 years. The first was

         20  California, to support the creation of a procurement

         21  system based on basically the market, the commercial

         22  market model, which saved California a significant

         23  chunk of change in negotiating for this technology.

         24                 This is the second time I've appeared

         25  before a panel.
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          2                 I can guarantee you that the

          3  companies that were cited are very happy I am here,

          4  and in fact, I was considered, the term we used was

          5  "sacrificial lamb." But nevertheless, I appreciate

          6  being here.

          7                 The fact of the matter is, relative

          8  to the specifications on these power supplies, the

          9  market is not mature. The companies offering those

         10  power supplies are not utilized by our

         11  manufacturers, and we expect that it's going to take

         12  a significant period of time to validate the

         13  capabilities of these companies to deliver products

         14  so that these companies can continue to compete in a

         15  very hyper competitive market.

         16                 Now, the question you might ask me

         17  is, well, what's the harm? There's a lot of waiver

         18  potentiality or potentially in the legislation, you

         19  know, some wiggle room so-to-speak. So, what's the

         20  harm of putting that policy down now in the statute,

         21  and letting the market catch up?

         22                 The problem I see, Mr. Chairman, is

         23  that in the 15 years that I worked, actually 20

         24  years, I worked in congress for six years on a

         25  procurement committee, contracts committee, and have
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          2  worked for the industry for 15 years, there are

          3  still policies and laws and regulations on the books

          4  in the federal government that are not complied with

          5  by the administrative agencies simply because in the

          6  initial interaction with those laws, they could not

          7  deliver products that meet those requirements.

          8                 It created a mindset to ignore those

          9  policies and essentially find a way to get around

         10  them, and we still see that today.

         11                 I can go through, and one of the most

         12  frustrating for me is the accessibility for people

         13  with disabilities. That's my primary issue for ITI.

         14  We've been working and trying to drive that market

         15  for three years and still basically some of the

         16  procurement people simply take a piece of paper and

         17  stick it in a file and then they check the box and

         18  say they're done without having evaluated whether

         19  those products truly deliver.

         20                 I appreciate that you have

         21  independent consultants giving you advice, you have

         22  organizations giving you advice. I submit you have

         23  not received an independent evaluation of the

         24  potential of these power supplies by virtually the

         25  fact that all of us have a financial stake in the
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          2  outcome of this policy debate, and we would welcome

          3  the opportunity to submit what we have presented to

          4  the Council as an attachment and also to Mr. Unger

          5  and Mr. Washburn to have somebody truly independent

          6  in this process evaluate the representations that we

          7  have made.

          8                 We maybe have stated an

          9  overly-pessimistic view that's the nature of

         10  business when we're dealing with regulation, but I

         11  submit that the consultants you have heard from have

         12  stated a very optimistic point of view that in our

         13  experience, based on the design and electrical

         14  engineers that I work with, those are just not

         15  factual representations.

         16                 Our recommendation is to remove the

         17  power supply specifications. Trust EPA to negotiate

         18  hard and fast with us. We are in that process as we

         19  speak. We have requested a meeting with the

         20  administrator of EPA to discuss this very issue, as

         21  well as a few other issues. We have indicated to EPA

         22  that when this market and supply chain is mature,

         23  when we are assured the failure rates are not going

         24  to occur, that we are ready to adopt that

         25  technology. What we would request is that the
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          2  Council allow that process to mature, allow us to

          3  continue negotiation with the expectation according

          4  to EPA, that they will present the new computer

          5  specification, or publicize it, excuse me, in

          6  January.

          7                 I would welcome an opportunity to

          8  respond to questions. If I cannot answer directly,

          9  then I would be happy to provide responses in

         10  writing at a later time.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, we'd be

         13  happy to receive any and all information that you

         14  have to shed more light on this information.

         15  Obviously, you know, when it comes to legislation,

         16  we want legislation that's going to not only be in

         17  the books but be implemented there. So, that's very,

         18  very important.

         19                 I hear what you're saying, that if in

         20  fact companies that you represent were here and

         21  heard from the previous panel, they would say where

         22  did they get that information from, you know, we

         23  adamantly disagree with that. Well, we think that by

         24  having them here, and by you listening to it, them

         25  listening to you, hopefully the information will
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          2  come to light who is telling the truth right now.

          3  And I don't know. We're trying to find that out in

          4  order to best move forward as positive as we can.

          5                 But let me ask the question: Did EPA,

          6  now does EPA not have a plan that require improved

          7  power supplies by January 1, 2007?

          8                 MR. SALAETZ: Right now there is

          9  preliminary criteria that is on the table.

         10                 Essentially what EPA has done is

         11  float their thinking, so-to-speak. They put out what

         12  they call "framework documents." In these documents

         13  they identify research that they have helped fund,

         14  whether through grants or direct contracts. NRDC is

         15  a grantee of EPA, for example, and does considerable

         16  research for that organization.

         17                 What they then do is sit down with

         18  what they call "the partners." Those are companies

         19  that have actually signed up to participate in the

         20  program and offer Energy Start qualified products

         21  and we negotiate. Negotiations have expanded of late

         22  to include the European Union, and we've encouraged

         23  the EPA to broaden that to all of the other Energy

         24  Star international partners, so that we have truly a

         25  global dialogue.
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          2                 What is on paper is a proposal. The

          3  date is January '07. It's a proposal. It's not hard

          4  and fast. It has not been agreed to by industry.

          5  It's still subject to negotiations.

          6                 What we have done is requested a

          7  meeting with Stephen Johnson, who is an

          8  administrator, to talk about an array of issues, but

          9  the power supply specification is one of them.

         10                 We, of course, at this point not

         11  having that meeting, we don't know what that outcome

         12  will be per se. We're also meeting with members of

         13  congress in both the Senate and the House to discuss

         14  the background on this issue and the information

         15  that we have.

         16                 And to the extent that we can, we're

         17  actually putting the engineers, who have to make

         18  these judgments and evaluations, at their beck and

         19  call, and that's not right terminology, make them

         20  available to the policy-makers so that they can make

         21  informed judgments.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, the

         23  previous panel communicated that how much energy can

         24  be saved with respects to the AC versus DC, and

         25  that's in between; do you agree or disagree, and I'm
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          2  asking this question to all of you, as far as the

          3  amount of energy that can be saved?

          4                 Now, mind you, I understand why

          5  educating consumers and all people involved in, you

          6  know, computers and what have you, in order to save

          7  energy and in the long run if we turn off computers

          8  and, you know, reduce the air conditioning or reduce

          9  the lighting and we can save so much power and in

         10  essence, you know, have our environment more

         11  friendly, but do you agree with the numbers they

         12  quoted as to how much energy is wasted as a result

         13  of, you know, moving from AC to DC with the

         14  computers? And I just want to hear your comments

         15  from each one of you, if you have comments.

         16                 MR. SALAETS: If I may? Just in

         17  fairness, I'm not an electrical engineer, I'm a

         18  policy wonk. But it depends on where you start with

         19  the baseline. The research that we have seen, for

         20  example, quote, efficiencies of the current power

         21  supply, power supplies in the established base, as

         22  anywhere from 55 to I think a range of 65 percent.

         23  That does not jive with the information I've seen

         24  based on at least my manufacturers, granted they are

         25  what I like to call the cream of the crop or the IT
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          2  sector, but they also happen to represent the

          3  largest percentage of manufacturers in terms of the

          4  marketshare.

          5                 As best as we can tell, the baseline

          6  in our analysis appears to be based on gaming

          7  machines, machines used by those who engage in

          8  internet related games and the like, which tend to

          9  be highly inefficient, but also use much larger

         10  power supplies.

         11                 To the best of my knowledge, I would

         12  assume, just an assumption, is that the City's

         13  administrators or agencies would not be purchasing

         14  those type of machines for their, you know, for the

         15  employees to use within the City.

         16                 From what I have seen in terms of the

         17  data that's been shown by engineers, is that we

         18  range in efficiency, current efficiencies, anywhere

         19  from 65 to 75 percent. In some cases a range from 70

         20  to 75 percent. So, moving from 70 to 75 up to 80

         21  percent efficiency, there is some potential savings

         22  there, but we believe that the savings that have

         23  been represented in this research have been

         24  overstated.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Any comments
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          2  from the other two panelists? If you don't have any,

          3  it's okay. I just wanted to know if you have a

          4  comment on that?

          5                 MS. BALOG: I would like to see from

          6  NRDC's testimony, respectfully just look at the

          7  numbers and see where those figures were derived

          8  from. Those numbers are definitely an outlyer in my

          9  six years experience on Capitol Hill as an energy

         10  policy staffer, and now with CEA. I have never heard

         11  any numbers that suggested that kind of energy

         12  savings in the equivalency of millions of cars off

         13  the road, I mean in that level of either carbon

         14  dioxide, I mean at any rate. So, I would be

         15  interested in seeing the background behind those

         16  numbers, and inspecting those against our figures. I

         17  actively want to do that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What kind of

         19  figures does ECA or ECI figure that they're at?

         20                 MS. BALOG: I don't have any specific

         21  figures with me here. But I can certainly give them

         22  to you when I get back to Washington. I don't

         23  remember off the top of my head any numbers that we

         24  have that would indicate X number of computers

         25  turned off or upgraded with a certain power source
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          2  that would then be the equivalent of, you know,

          3  kilowatts per year.

          4                 I mean, I can't remember anything

          5  like that now. But I'll be happy to get that to you,

          6  from our perspective.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Mr. Rosario, any

          8  comments? No?

          9                 MR. ROSARIO: No. As a plastics

         10  industry, the speakers to my left and right are our

         11  customers, so they're the experts.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I just wanted to

         13  see if you had any comments. That's all. You may

         14  surprise me, you know?

         15                 Ken, you indicated -- I mean the

         16  previous panel indicated a cost factor, as far as in

         17  order to deal with the energy supplies in the

         18  computers. Do you agree or disagree with their

         19  assessment on the cost factor, and if in fact the

         20  industry moved in that direction, you know,

         21  considering what appears to be as a consumer, to my

         22  opinion, a small cost factor for the manufacturer,

         23  and in the long run saving energy dollars for the

         24  consumers; do you agree with the cost factor that

         25  they talked about from an input point of view?
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          2                 MR. SALAETS: I'm not certain I

          3  understand the question. If I may respond in this

          4  way: I believe, and I did my best to take accurate

          5  notes, they said the incremental cost is less than

          6  $5 for a desktop? We're talking specifically power

          7  supply cost.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

          9                 MR. SALAETS: And less than $10 for

         10  servers. These numbers are not the numbers we're

         11  hearing.

         12                 In my written statement I believe I

         13  quote a range from ten to $45, depending on the

         14  source and the power rating of the power supply.

         15                 If you are talking about the five

         16  qualified vendors that ECO's Consulting has listed

         17  on their web page, I believe only two of those

         18  companies actually have units in production. The

         19  other three are in prototype. And according to

         20  specific information that some of our computer and

         21  component manufacturers have heard, in some cases

         22  there are no specific plans at this point to go into

         23  production, with some of those units. The prices

         24  from those five countries -- countries, excuse me --

         25  companies range anywhere from I believe it's $30 to
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          2  $45 per unit, which is significantly higher than

          3  five or ten dollars.

          4                 Secondly, there is reference to a

          5  buy-down program that some of the utilities are

          6  sponsoring, specifically one related to 80 Plus,

          7  again, an ECO's Consulting project.

          8                 To the best of my knowledge, and I

          9  can't say I've talked to every single computer

         10  manufacturer, but we do represent five of them. I'm

         11  not aware of any company that has of yet been

         12  offered any specific buy-down for using these power

         13  supplies. Now, that may be chicken and egg or

         14  something where perhaps they haven't offered those

         15  products, so hence the buy-down isn't available, but

         16  even so what we have found with most of these

         17  utility-related buy-down programs, the dollars that

         18  they are offering come nowhere near covering the

         19  cost to the industry and since typically consumers

         20  buy computers based on performance and price and not

         21  on energy efficiency, it has been next to impossible

         22  to pass on our higher cost for participating in

         23  Energy Start to the customer.

         24                 So, consequently, to the extent that

         25  those costs aren't compensated somewhere, we eat
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          2  them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I know,

          4  I'm not there at computers yet, but as far as AC, I

          5  know most consumers go out and buy air conditioners,

          6  they look at how much energy is going to be used and

          7  what's the cost factor to run it.

          8                 MR. SALAETS: There's a distinct

          9  difference in technologies with the Energy Star

         10  Program, and the administrative witness says one

         11  size does not fit all. It's clear with the Energy

         12  Star program.

         13                 For example, if you go into a local

         14  Best Buy store or, you know, a retailer that sells

         15  white appliances, if a white appliance is Energy

         16  Star qualified, there are probably some significant

         17  measurable savings that you would see in your energy

         18  bill by virtue of buying that product.

         19                 You, in essence, would not see any

         20  difference in your energy bill when you buy an

         21  Energy Star qualified office product. And that has

         22  been one of our frustrations, because in effect what

         23  we've had to do is create technologies that make

         24  energy efficiency transparent to the end user

         25  because they're not willing to pay for it.
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          2                 What we're also discovering is that

          3  some of the, for example, in the white appliance

          4  arenas, some of those products that are Energy Star

          5  qualified and have other environmental benefits are

          6  actually costing higher maintenance cost to the

          7  customer beyond the warranty period.

          8                 We expect in time that that will be

          9  worked out, but that creates a disincentive again

         10  for the consumer to pay the higher cost initially

         11  and then have back-end cost as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me ask

         13  two questions.

         14                 As you know, I'm not a computer

         15  industry person. I am a legislator, I'm a lay

         16  person, I depend on your testimony and the testimony

         17  of the other people that are here and all the

         18  research that needs to be done by legal staff and

         19  other staff, and also try to come up with the

         20  legislation that's workable.

         21                 Did I hear you indicate that the

         22  computer industry is opposed to Intro. 536-A? And am

         23  I right in that, or am I wrong?

         24                 MR. SALAETS: Let me qualify, Mr.

         25  Chairman.

                                                            134

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 Unfortunately, when I was signing on

          3  the testimony slip I had to put opposed because

          4  there was no neutral.

          5                 The power management provision in

          6  here, in the initial phone call I had with staff, I

          7  had expressed or raised concerns about those.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          9                 MR. SALAETS: I was conveying a

         10  message on behalf of one of my members who then

         11  after hearing the staff response came back to me and

         12  assured me that they were comfortable. And if

         13  anything now, I think we're a strong advocate. And

         14  in fact, I had a conversation with Chairman Gennaro

         15  that he would actually have some ideas on how to

         16  strengthen that.

         17                 Embracing Energy Star makes sense.

         18  Our companies build Energy Star qualified products.

         19  We participate in the program, as I indicated, we

         20  helped launch the program.

         21                 To the extent that you can create a

         22  market where Energy Star qualified is a

         23  differentiator in the competition, my companies

         24  would support that, because again we support the

         25  program.
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          2                 To the extent where the Council might

          3  consider provisions where you start specifying

          4  efficiency levels for components within the computer

          5  itself, we have serious concerns about that.

          6                 In fact, I mean not just with the

          7  Council, but also the EPA. We've expressed the same

          8  reservations and have presented the same arguments.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, you know

         10  that this legislation does not mandate the

         11  manufacturers to build. What it says is that from

         12  the City of New York, if there are manufacturers

         13  that are out there that are building more efficient

         14  computers to save us energy and what have you, that

         15  that's a direction that we should go in as far as

         16  purchasing them. You're aware of that, right?

         17                 MR. SALAETS: Correct. There's two

         18  ways to approach that, I would guess. One is, as we

         19  would recommend, let EPA negotiate those agreements

         20  and --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what if they

         22  don't?

         23                 MR. SALAETS: EPA has never, in my

         24  experience, put anything on the table that in some

         25  fashion didn't end up in a revision.
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          2                 For the most part, we both tabled,

          3  and that means proposed different suggestions. We

          4  have hard-nosed negotiations and in time those are

          5  incorporated.

          6                 We've already indicated in a meeting

          7  that we hosted in Austin at Dell's facilities that

          8  we were willing to look very seriously at that

          9  market and consider that, with the assumption that

         10  the market will go that way, but we just need the

         11  market to be ready.

         12                 I'm sorry, I missed the second part

         13  of the question.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No time frame?

         15                 MR. SALAETS: We are looking at, I

         16  think it was 18 to 24 months. I think in the

         17  document that we presented it says 20 to 22. It's

         18  been indicated and probably accurately so, but I

         19  couldn't give you any specifics that there are some.

         20                 The various steps that I identified

         21  are some areas where we can overlap.

         22                 On the other hand, we feel that the

         23  representation that has been given to the Council is

         24  overly optimistic. Ten months is the number that

         25  we've heard, we just don't think that's realistic.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I guess the

          3  question that I have and that we have is, why should

          4  it take so long if when the industry, when it comes

          5  to when somebody else comes with a chip that can

          6  produce so much more, the industry racks up in order

          7  to compete. So, I make the assumption here, if

          8  someone moves forward, as far as to produce the

          9  energy source, in order so that the cost factor is

         10  reduced and the industry will rack up and probably

         11  compete with that; is that right? Because

         12  competition drives it? Is that what I'm hearing?

         13                 MR. SALAETS: Competition is a

         14  critical factor. For you as a consumer, as a policy

         15  maker and the like.

         16                 What we don't see is when Intel or

         17  AMD, both of whom are my customers, frankly, when

         18  they are developing new chip processes, it's not

         19  simply something where they turn around and announce

         20  something and the Dells and the HPs and the Gateways

         21  and all these companies come and grab them by the

         22  bushel and start popping them in their machines.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They've been

         24  researching it all along you're saying?

         25                 MR. SALAETS: It's usually a
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          2  partnership. Same thing with software. For example,

          3  the new operating system that I referred to coming

          4  from Microsoft, it's going to replace XP, its code

          5  name is Longhorn, I think there's now another name

          6  for that. What they did in that process, they had

          7  basically nurtured relationships with product

          8  developers, PC manufacturers, even assistive

          9  technology device manufacturers over a period of

         10  two-plus years. It's a very deliberative process and

         11  entails give and take from all players, all factors,

         12  before those products are actually developed and

         13  incorporated and sync'd up with the technologies

         14  that are out there.

         15                 With power supplies, this is not a

         16  case where I can drive down, in my case across the

         17  street, to Best Buy, order 2,000, you know, of these

         18  highly extra efficient power supplies and then drop

         19  them in machines. That's just not the way the market

         20  works.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But if, in fact

         22  -- I don't need to tell you what the costs of

         23  energy is today. We all know that gasoline and oil

         24  and what have you, and so forth, and I know I saw in

         25  my Con Edison bill in the month of July, and it's
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          2  like, what? Are you serious? It was that much money.

          3  So, I'm sure that people all over this country are

          4  saying, computer companies, get it together to save

          5  us energies, what if that was the sounding cry?

          6                 MR. SALAETS: If that were truly,

          7  truly the sounding cry in our market, we respond to

          8  the market. This is not Field of Dreams where we

          9  build it and they come. This is to make the

         10  investments, significant investments, in every

         11  aspect of the development, including evaluating new

         12  suppliers and the like, to make that investment, we

         13  have to have a reasonable expectation, that in the

         14  end we will be able to recover some of that cost.

         15                 Traditionally, in the Energy Star

         16  program, we have not been able to recover our costs.

         17  This proposal will drive up our costs significantly

         18  in the short term, and short term, again, I would

         19  suggest is 18 to 20 months.

         20                 In the long-term, once the economies

         21  of scale are up there, once there is enough of this

         22  technology in the marketplace, it's been field

         23  tested, the manufacturers of these power supplies

         24  are matching our quality scanners on failure rates

         25  and other considerations, production considerations,
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          2  then it will almost be -- then --I appreciate this

          3  is not the responsibility of the Council, the

          4  Council's focus is on the City of New York, but when

          5  we reach the point where the market is mature and

          6  the price of these power supplies have dropped,

          7  there's the distinct possibility that we will offer

          8  those power supplies in all of our products, so that

          9  all consumers, whether they care about efficiency or

         10  not, will benefit from that technology.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now you're

         12  talking.

         13                 MR. SALAETS: That's the way we've

         14  done it all along. But the market has always --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, as a

         16  representative of your market, I'm one out of 300

         17  and -- how many American? How many in the United

         18  States? 310 million or something like that. And if

         19  you ask anyone that owns a home or that has to pay

         20  electricity bills, it's the energy cost. So, I'm the

         21  first one, if you haven't heard it, produce the

         22  stuff that's going to, you know, use less energy.

         23                 MR. SALEATS: We've done that from the

         24  beginning and we continue to do so, Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Well, I
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          2  want to thank you for coming in and participating in

          3  this dialogue. We appreciate it.

          4                 And please forward us any information

          5  you have so we can evaluate that in order to try to

          6  put forward the best legislation possible.

          7                 Thank you for coming, all three of

          8  you.

          9                 Okay, we have Michael Schade from the

         10  Center for Health Environment & Justice; Stephen

         11  Boese from the Healthy Schools Network; and Anselm

         12  Doering from the Ecological Solutions; Yolanda

         13  Gonzalez from Nos Quedamos; Ken Diamondstone, I

         14  believe? Do we have Ken Diamondstone here from

         15  Brooklyn SWAB? Ken, please come forward.

         16                 Fellows, would you introduce yourself

         17  and your affiliation, and we can begin.

         18                 MR. SCHADE: My name is Michael

         19  Schade. I'm with the Center for Health Environment

         20  And Justice.

         21                 MR. BOESE: Steve Boese, New York

         22  State Healthy Schools Network.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sir?

         24                 MR. DOERING: Anselm Doering with

         25  Ecologic Solutions.
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          2                 MR. DIAMONDSTONE: Ken Diamondstone,

          3  Chair of the Brooklyn Solid Waste Advisory Board.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Mike, you can

          5  begin first.

          6                 MR. SCHADE: Great. Well, thank you

          7  for the opportunity to comment on these critically

          8  important bills. My name is Michael Schade. I'm the

          9  Campaign Coordinator, Center for Health, Environment

         10  And Justice. CHEJ is a national environmental

         11  organization that was founded in 1981 by Love Canal

         12  leader, Lois Gibbs. And what we do is we assist

         13  people to fight for justice and become empowered to

         14  protect their community's environmental threats, and

         15  we also lead national environmental health

         16  campaigns.

         17                 Today I am going to focus my comments

         18  on Introduction No. 544-A, the reduction of

         19  hazardous substances and products purchased by the

         20  City.

         21                 While there are many important health

         22  and environmental attributes to this bill that we

         23  support, such as electronics take-back and recycling

         24  and increasing the purchase of low-mercury lamps, we

         25  strongly support the bill language which states,
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          2  "The director in consultation with the Mayor's

          3  Office of Environmental Coordination shall develop

          4  regulations to phase out the City's purchase of

          5  polyvinyl chloride.

          6                 I would like to discuss the extensive

          7  environmental and human health problems due to PVC

          8  production, use and disposal, which really

          9  underscores the need for a phaseout of PVC products

         10  in purchasing safer, healthier office and building

         11  products.

         12                 I have submitted along with my

         13  testimony a number of well researched and well

         14  documented reports that outline these hazards.

         15                 PVC, or poly-vinyl chloride or vinyl

         16  plastic, is dangerous to human health and the

         17  environment threat, its entire lifecycle of

         18  production, use and disposal, making PVC one of the

         19  most hazardous consumer products that have ever been

         20  created.

         21                 Today, you may have heard from the

         22  vinyl industry, as you did earlier, that their

         23  product is completely safe. And of course they're

         24  going to say that their product is safe, that's what

         25  they do. Of course the tobacco industry also
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          2  defended the product for decades. We expect them to.

          3                 The truth is that our bodies are

          4  contaminated with hazardous chemicals that are

          5  released and produced during the PVC lifecycle, such

          6  as mercury, dioxins, thallates, many of these

          7  chemicals can pose irreversible lifelong health

          8  threats. When produced or burned, PVC plastic

          9  produces dioxins which are the most potent synthetic

         10  chemicals that were ever tested, which can cause

         11  cancer and harm immune and reproductive systems.

         12                 PVC is useless without the addition

         13  of plethora of toxic additives which make the PVC

         14  product itself harmful to consumer and building

         15  occupants.

         16                 Unfortunately, these chemicals are

         17  not chemically bound to PVC and off-gas or leach

         18  out, posing risks to children, as well as consumers.

         19                 Council members may be familiar with

         20  the familiar new car smell or new shower curtain

         21  smell. That's actually the smell of PVC plastic that

         22  you're smelling.

         23                 One of the most common toxic

         24  additives is a thallate known as DEHP, and it's a

         25  known, it's a suspected carcinogen and reproductive
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          2  toxicant which is readily found in numerous PVC

          3  products.

          4                 Numerous studies have investigated

          5  asthma connections with PVC. A Swedish study looked

          6  at over 10,000 children, and they found that the

          7  presence of both floor moisture and PVC

          8  significantly increased the risk of asthma.

          9                 Another study found a "striking"

         10  correlation between thallates used in PVC flooring

         11  products, and a marked increase in asthma and

         12  allergies in children over the past 30 years.

         13                 This is particularly significant here

         14  in New York City, considering the thousands and

         15  thousands of children that have asthma.

         16                 We talked earlier about race. PVC

         17  plants are disproportionately located in low-income

         18  and communities of color, predominantly in Louisiana

         19  and Texas, making the production of PVC a major

         20  issue of environmental justice and environmental

         21  racism.

         22                 Communities surrounding vinyl

         23  chloride facilities suffer from groundwater and air

         24  pollution. These plants emit many highly toxic

         25  chemicals from vinyl chloride to dioxin, lead, to
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          2  hydrochloric acid.

          3                 One particular community in

          4  Louisiana, in Mossville, Louisiana, the federal

          5  government tested blood levels of residents a number

          6  of years ago. Many of these residents live near

          7  these PVC plants. The blood testing revealed that

          8  the average resident in this community has three

          9  times more dioxin in his or her blood than the

         10  average US citizen.

         11                 Workers at PVC plants may also face

         12  lifelong health risks, such as angiosarcoma of the

         13  liver, from exposure to cancer-causing vinyl

         14  chloride and other hazardous chemicals that are used

         15  to make PVC plastic.

         16                 When PVC is heated in a building

         17  fire, PVC releases toxic hydrogen chloride gas,

         18  which forms into deadly hydrochloric acid when

         19  inhaled by firefighters and building occupants.

         20                 Firefighters may face harmful

         21  exposures when battling fires laden with PVC. This

         22  is no secret here in New York State to firefighters

         23  who continue to suffer from exposure to the

         24  byproducts combustion of 100 tons of PVC wire

         25  sheathing in the New York Telephone Company fire of
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          2  1975, which some of you may remember. That fire

          3  burned for more than 16 hours, and today many of

          4  those same firefighters struggle with cancer which

          5  they believe was due to that exposure.

          6                 After September 11th, the EPA

          7  measured the highest ambient air concentrations of

          8  dioxins ever tested anywhere in the world near

          9  Ground Zero.

         10                 A study published in the

         11  Environmental Health Perspectives Journal stated

         12  that the extensive use of PVC plastic made possible

         13  the generation of dioxins during the fires near

         14  Ground Zero.

         15                 Unfortunately, PVC cannot be

         16  effectively recycled due to the plethora of toxic

         17  additives that are used to soften or stabilize PVC,

         18  such as lead. These can actually contaminate the

         19  recycling batch. Just one PVC bottle can contaminate

         20  a recycling load of over 100,000 HTPE bottles.

         21                 The numbers today speak for

         22  themselves, only between .1 percent to three percent

         23  of post consumer PVC waste is currently being

         24  recycled.

         25                 The good news is that safer and
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          2  cost-effective alternatives to PVC are readily

          3  available for virtually every use, from safer

          4  plastics to biobase materials, there is a growing

          5  market replacing hazardous PVC products.

          6                 Other cities, such as Seattle,

          7  Boston, San Francisco, and even Buffalo have adopted

          8  similar policies to phase out the purchase of

          9  products such as PVC that produce persistent toxic

         10  pollution.

         11                 In response to the toxic lifecycle of

         12  PVC, a number of major companies have also committed

         13  to phasing out PVC products.

         14                 These companies include Bath and

         15  Bodyworks, Firestone Building Products, Honda, Ikea,

         16  Johnson and Johnson, Microsoft, Nike, SE Johnson,

         17  Shaw Carpet, Toyota, Victoria Secret and a whole

         18  host of other companies.

         19                 Health care institutions are also

         20  leading the way phasing out the use of PVC and

         21  health care products and also in buildings.

         22                 New York City has an incredible

         23  opportunity to purchase safer and healthier building

         24  and office products which will go a long way in

         25  protecting the health of building occupants,
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          2  firefighters and the greater New York City

          3  environment.

          4                 Given the growing environmental

          5  health problems associated with the PVC lifecycle,

          6  we urge you to support this critically important

          7  legislation, to phase out New York City's purchase

          8  of PVC products.

          9                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         10  comment today.

         11                 MR. BOESE: Thank you. I'm Steve Boese

         12  from Healthy Schools Network.

         13                 Healthy Schools Network is a

         14  non-for-profit advocacy organization. We're

         15  dedicated to ensuring environmentally healthy

         16  learning environments for students, teachers and all

         17  school personnel. Our work at Health Schools Network

         18  begins with advocacy for the environmental health of

         19  children and other building occupants at school,

         20  encouraging the use of environmentally preferable or

         21  green cleaning products for schools is among our

         22  highest priorities and we are pleased to be granted

         23  this opportunity to speak to this today.

         24                 To summarize the major points of what

         25  we'll be addressing, we support Intro. 552-A, which
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          2  would promote the use of less toxic cleaning and

          3  other custodial products. I think the major point

          4  that we really want to get across with our testimony

          5  today is that Intro. 552-A is an important

          6  children's health initiative. By encouraging the use

          7  of less toxic cleaning products in school, this

          8  legislation will provide for healthier school

          9  environments for students, as well as for custodial

         10  staff, teachers and all school building occupants.

         11                 Green cleaning is also cost effective

         12  for schools.

         13                 We support using Green Seal as the

         14  standard for procurement of less toxic,

         15  environmentally preferable cleaning products. We

         16  support, in principle, all the other bills that are

         17  on the docket today regarding environmentally

         18  preferable purchasing, although we speak today

         19  specifically to 552-A, and are most seriously

         20  concerned regarding the legislation, is that it

         21  seems to be linked to passage of all the other

         22  bills, I would say that with the -- so in other

         23  words, this bill becomes effective when and if all

         24  the other bills passed and enacted into law that are

         25  part of this package.
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          2                 I would just say that with the

          3  experience of other municipalities, of schools that

          4  have put in this program, what we know about green

          5  cleaning, that this legislation is strong enough to

          6  stand up on its own.

          7                 A few points that are in the

          8  testimony: Children are uniquely vulnerable to

          9  environmental contaminant. Children

         10  disproportionately breathe more air, drink more

         11  fluids, eat more food than adults. Their developing

         12  systems are more vulnerable to environmental toxins

         13  than fully developed adults. Children's behavior

         14  makes them more vulnerable, even in proximity to the

         15  floor makes them more vulnerable to environmental

         16  toxins.

         17                 And children's exposure into

         18  environmental hazards at schools contributes to

         19  multiple health problems. Poor school indoor air is

         20  a major contributor to causing and exacerbating

         21  asthma, which is well known to be at epidemic

         22  proportions among school-age children. Hazards in

         23  the school environment are linked to a host of other

         24  health problems, including respiratory problems,

         25  poor concentration, rashes, headaches,
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          2  gastrointestinal problems, nervous system disorders

          3  and even suspected cancers.

          4                 Naturally, there has been a dramatic

          5  rise in the number of children affected with

          6  learning disabilities, attention deficit,

          7  hyperactivity disorder and autism. These conditions

          8  are also linked with environmental toxins that may

          9  be found in the school environment.

         10                 Industrial strength cleaning products

         11  used by many schools actually add to indoor air

         12  pollution. These products are risky to use around

         13  children, especially those with asthma, sensitive

         14  airways or other health problems. They're hazardous

         15  to the cleaning staff that handle them directly, and

         16  they present schools with special handling and

         17  disposal costs. Improperly stored or improperly used

         18  cleaning products also put children at risk for

         19  potentially severe poisoning.

         20                 Green cleaning is a very cost

         21  effective health intervention strategy.

         22                 Regarding Green Seal, we support the

         23  use of Green Seal in this legislation. A third-party

         24  evaluation like Green Seal assure that the products

         25  meet rigid standards as claimed. There is an ample
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          2  amount of green washing in the marketplace, meaning

          3  that products represent that they minimize health

          4  impacts. Yet, without a rigorous independent

          5  evaluation, there is no way to know that these

          6  claims are true.

          7                 The second value of Green Seal for

          8  cleaning products is that these standards have been

          9  widely adopted by municipalities around the country.

         10  Many manufacturers and distributors have risen to

         11  the challenge of Green Seal standards and met

         12  criteria with the cleaning products.

         13                 Today products that meet the Green

         14  Seal standard are now widely available for multiple

         15  sources, assuring the product quality and

         16  availability are at reasonable cost for schools.

         17                 One of the points raised by Miss

         18  Simpson -- well, let me just say, the New York State

         19  hearing on this issue that was held in '04, a full

         20  day of testimony was heard. Of special interest was

         21  testimony from school facility directors who have

         22  implemented environmentally preferable and less

         23  toxic cleaning programs for the schools.

         24                 The testimony confirmed that

         25  environmentally preferred cleaning products cleaned
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          2  just as effectively, if not better than conventional

          3  products. One director testified that if schools

          4  just felt cleaner, and that many others noticed this

          5  change as well. Testimony was also heard that,

          6  confirmed that environmentally preferred and

          7  healthier cleaners are easier to use and less costly

          8  because it reduced storage and disposal costs.

          9                 We would also add that additional

         10  cost benefits from dramatically reduced occupational

         11  poisonings that result from accidental exposures by

         12  cleaning personnel, and, of course, from reducing

         13  illness for children and all others in the school

         14  facility.

         15                 At the same hearing, the New York

         16  City Education Department testified that they would

         17  soon, in cooperation with Healthy Schools Network,

         18  be implementing a green cleaning demonstration

         19  program for New York City schools. This

         20  demonstration program is now in place.

         21                 One of Ms. Simpson's points was that

         22  green cleaning should be tested before it's made

         23  mandatory, if I understand her comments correctly.

         24                 We have a green cleaning

         25  demonstration program in the schools in the City
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          2  right now, it's proceeding very well. Green cleaning

          3  has been, as your briefing materials themselves

          4  show, have been implemented in many levels of the

          5  federal government, in many municipalities around

          6  the country, in many schools around the State. The

          7  experience and the research shows that green

          8  cleaning works. It reduces health impacts, creates

          9  healthier school facilities, cost effective, cheaper

         10  to use, and the schools are just as clean, if not

         11  cleaner, than with conventional programs.

         12                 It has been tested, it has been used,

         13  and it's really ready to be adapted as policy.

         14                 We firmly believe that there is no

         15  reason not to enact this legislation, and lead New

         16  York City and all the school children to healthier,

         17  most cost effective cleaning program. So that is the

         18  gist.

         19                 Again, the point that I want to get

         20  across is, it is an important children's health

         21  initiative for school children, as well as everybody

         22  else, and at school buildings in this City. Thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         25                 Mr. Doering. How do you pronounce
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          2  your last name, sir?

          3                 MR. DOERING: Yes, Doering.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Ecological

          5  Solutions.

          6                 MR. DOERING: Good afternoon, Chairman

          7  and the Council. Thank you for asking that I testify

          8  on behalf of the proposed bills, of which specific

          9  mention to us is 534-A and 552-A. I'm in full

         10  support of passing these bills into law. I have been

         11  committed to these types of environmentally

         12  preferable products initiatives for over 15 years.

         13                 New York State and the City have

         14  distinct opportunity to have dramatic compound

         15  beneficial impacts upon the health of their workers

         16  in the immediate environment.

         17                 Government purchasing represents one

         18  of the largest consumers in a very vast marketplace,

         19  and should lead by example in deciding on options

         20  that are documented effective and safe to use.

         21                 Ten to 15 years ago, New York used to

         22  be one of the leading green states with its

         23  recycling programs and its concerns for the

         24  environment. It's now behind California,

         25  Massachusetts, Minnesota, Connecticut, Michigan,
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          2  Ohio, Pennsylvania, when it comes to

          3  environmentally-friendly initiatives, or EPP.

          4                 These positive changes for

          5  municipalities is well overdue.

          6                 Governmental studies have found that

          7  the average custodian will generate approximately 50

          8  pounds of hazardous waste a year. It's increased

          9  about nine percent when you're talking about

         10  housekeeping for say hotels.

         11                 When looking at the size of the

         12  custodial workforce for the State and City, this

         13  number adds up to totals that are staggering.

         14                 Not only is this hazardous waste

         15  affecting end-user's health, but those of the

         16  co-workers. This is not to mention the absolute

         17  impact upon the ecosystem.

         18                 The studies go on to conclude that an

         19  average of about seven custodians out of 100 are out

         20  of work due to chemical cleaning or work-related

         21  injuries per year.

         22                 On average, this costs an institution

         23  $750 per claim. Ecologic Solutions is a

         24  manufacturing distribution company that focuses 100

         25  percent of its resources on developing and
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          2  introducing to many different industries documented

          3  100 percent non-hazardous, non-polluting, non-toxic

          4  cleaning and chemical options.

          5                 ELS has an arsenal of over 200

          6  products, using five different technologies,

          7  enabling it to present viable options for many

          8  different types of industries.

          9                 Some of these technologies have been

         10  in use over 30 years to clean up oil spills, or

         11  industries that typically demand highly hazardous

         12  chemical formulations.

         13                 Currently ELS successfully sells

         14  products to national parks, universities, hotels,

         15  school systems, restaurants, retreats, property

         16  management companies and many more.

         17                 ELS fully discloses and provides MSDS

         18  sheets.

         19                 ELS is growing and has a long list of

         20  satisfied customers from many markets with many

         21  different needs. This is further proof that whether

         22  or not an organization has environmental preferable

         23  purchasing directives, there are products that exist

         24  that work just as well, if not better than the

         25  standard, more hazardous chemical formulas and are
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          2  less expensive in most cases.

          3                 One key to successful transition that

          4  has been touched upon today is, in using EPP, is the

          5  demonstration, the training and the support of these

          6  products.

          7                 Once end-users understand that

          8  effective safer products exist, and how they are

          9  different in their safety aspect, excitement and

         10  motivation can actually be generated within their

         11  department. It's very effective.

         12                 In summation, there are products out

         13  there that are documented safer to use work just as

         14  well, if not better, and cost the same or less.

         15                 The bottom line is, upper-level

         16  executives, or these bills being passed, influence

         17  operations to seek out options and have a beneficial

         18  impact.

         19                 Current executives or end-users

         20  simply do not know that these options exist or where

         21  to purchase them.

         22                 The City government has a tremendous

         23  opportunity to take the lead and make this

         24  information possible to the vast workforce, without

         25  compromising price or efficacy. This will in turn
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          2  have a positive impact upon those manufacturers who

          3  typically produce and supply hazardous chemicals to

          4  manufacture safer ones, again having a great

          5  positive impact.

          6                 There were a few things I wanted to

          7  touch upon in hearing testimony from some of the

          8  other individuals. One was Ms. Simpson. I think just

          9  for the record, it would be great if the Director of

         10  Procurement would be here for the whole procedure.

         11                 I know granted the printed materials

         12  probably get passed around and so forth, but I think

         13  it would be great for her to learn and understand

         14  some of this feedback directly from some of the

         15  individuals that are making the information

         16  available. I know she's busy, as is everybody. But

         17  when she was talking about resistance of changing

         18  programs, as you probably have some experience with,

         19  too, and I have a lot of experience with, generally

         20  people resist change by nature, that's all there is

         21  to it.

         22                 To go in with information and

         23  educational materials and then inform these

         24  end-users who are in areas that have poor

         25  ventilation and are cleaning every day for 30
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          2  something years in many cases, and explain to them

          3  the differences of not using amonia or butylether

          4  petroleum distillates or synthetic fragrances and

          5  the list goes way on, most cases, in almost every

          6  case I found that individuals have great interest to

          7  that, because when you start pushing that button of

          8  this is your health you're talking about here, the

          9  products you're using every day and you love are

         10  mutagens, do not use this if you're breastfeeding or

         11  if you're pregnant, they take great interest to

         12  that. And if you convey that to the organization who

         13  is now supporting these initiatives, it's hugely

         14  motivational and for the morale it's a very

         15  difficult department to motivate somebody to clean

         16  better or harder. But when you are conveying the

         17  message that the big brother or the operation cares

         18  about your health, they feel motivated that the

         19  company now cares about me.

         20                 Again, people do resist change by

         21  nature, so that I think is the greatest task I

         22  usually have, but when you actually are on-hand

         23  demonstrating these products and the differences,

         24  the acceptance level increases dramatically.

         25                 I think the other one I wanted to
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          2  address was Green Seal. I've had many conversations

          3  one on one with Andrew Weisman, who is the president

          4  of that organization, and being in the environmental

          5  field for over 15 years, I really would like to

          6  raise the bar on Green Seal. They have become the

          7  punch word now for, or the punch, the pop

          8  certification program in the country it seems, when

          9  they really don't raise the bar high enough. They've

         10  actually raised it enough to allow the major

         11  manufacturers, such as the giants, I won't name

         12  them, I guess, to make it easier for them to develop

         13  these products, whereas the, you know, the standards

         14  in how green you can go and where trademarking a

         15  phrase deep green, how far you can go is much more

         16  than what Green Seal is putting into their GS 37 or

         17  their GS 40, which is relative to what we do.

         18                 So, I look to, you know, there's

         19  hundreds of certification organizations out there, I

         20  really look for governmental or EPA or FDA

         21  certifications to come out that really certify

         22  something that is beyond maybe a third party setting

         23  an example of how to certify green products.

         24                 Again, I think they've indirectly and

         25  unintentionally, as even Andrew Weisman has agreed,

                                                            163

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  hurting companies that focus, such as mine or other

          3  sustainable companies who only focus their resources

          4  on this, I think it's debilitated them slightly

          5  because now they're put up against trade names or

          6  the mass producers of these products, going up

          7  against them, if they're now Green Seal certified,

          8  against a company they haven't heard of before, most

          9  companies will probably opt for the major company

         10  that they have heard from before.

         11                 Additionally, to become Green Seal

         12  certified they charge around $7,000 per product to

         13  certify a year. And, so, for a smaller company that

         14  can be 40-50,000 dollars in certifications for only

         15  a few products a year. That's a huge expense. So,

         16  that's just to even raise the bar on Green Seal

         17  officially.

         18                 I guess, you know, one thing that

         19  also came up was the mixing. There are definitely

         20  proportion control machines that are out there that

         21  would remove the end-user from direct contact to the

         22  concentrates, control the proportion of the dilution

         23  of these chemicals, thereby controlling cost and

         24  spillage and everything else, and health problems

         25  that can occur from exposure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: If you don't

          3  mind, I'm trying to move along.

          4                 MR. DOERING: Okay. That was pretty

          5  much it anyway.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Well,

          7  thank you.

          8                 I can take one more panelist, Ken,

          9  from Brooklyn Solid Waste Management Advisory Board.

         10                 MR. DIAMONDSTONE: Councilman Jackson,

         11  Councilman Stewart, it's good to see you.

         12                 For years the New York City CRAB,

         13  that's the Citywide Recycling Advisory Board, and

         14  the SWABs, Solid Waste Advisory Boards, have been

         15  advocating for the purchase of products with

         16  recycled content. Bills have been introduced in the

         17  Council, 509, many bills have been introduced, and

         18  the intent of the City has clearly been that there's

         19  a willingness and a desire to buy products with

         20  recyclable content. And, yet, it hasn't happened

         21  very much.

         22                 I want to stop for a second and just

         23  say, I want to compliment this Committee for their

         24  work nine or ten months ago when you passed

         25  legislation requiring the purchase of Energy Star,
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          2  and energy-efficient products by the City, and that

          3  has made a big difference. And I hope that you will

          4  do the same here, and that the Council will do the

          5  same here with products with recyclable content.

          6                 I think it has an incredible

          7  possibility for the creation of jobs to help New

          8  York City become the environmental steward. We have

          9  not succeeded in purchasing materials with recycled

         10  content under DCAS. They have had an undistinguished

         11  -- it's paltry, the amount of product that they

         12  purchased has remained fairly stable over the years.

         13  In fact, they do achieve some success in the

         14  purchase of paper. But for virtually every other

         15  material with a few exceptions, there has been no

         16  increase in purchasing, or there's been a decrease

         17  in the purchase of products with recycle content.

         18  And it isn't clear as to why they haven't followed

         19  the requirements of the City which has mandated that

         20  you do that. And I think you note in the description

         21  of one of your bills that it is in the code that

         22  they by product with recycle content and they create

         23  standards, but it hasn't happened.

         24                 So, I'm here to speak strongly in

         25  favor of 534-A, and 545-A. These could be
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          2  monumentally important to the City. If this City,

          3  with its enormous purchasing power, were to

          4  consistently buy products with recycled content, and

          5  the manufacturers knew that there was going to be

          6  that consistent purchase, we can only assume that in

          7  time they would want to come close to their markets.

          8  They would bring facilities close to the City. They

          9  might remediate brownfields. They might make capital

         10  improvements to those lands. And then they might pay

         11  taxes and employ people, if the City were to buy the

         12  products with recycle content with its enormous

         13  purchasing power. And, again, it hasn't happened to

         14  date.

         15                 This legislation, hopefully, could

         16  make that happen.

         17                 I'd like to bring your attention to a

         18  guide that I brought with me today that I'm going to

         19  give to the Chair.  In it there is a list of over

         20  3,000 recycled products listings, as certified by

         21  over 600 manufacturers and distributors, and over

         22  500 regional merchants.

         23                 One would think that DCAS would have

         24  had this document. It didn't. It had no idea that

         25  there was a list.  From 1989, this has come out
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          2  every year.

          3                 The Brooklyn SWAB distributed it to

          4  them. They now have two copies. They didn't know it

          5  existed. The lack of structured purchasing by DCAS,

          6  the lack of attention to recycled product purchasing

          7  is shameful. Other cities have made strident efforts

          8  and stringent purchasing requirements. They've had

          9  organizations within their purchasing department to

         10  educate the purchasers. Not in this City, even

         11  though there are some minor attempts.

         12                 One of the problems is that the

         13  purchases of, the small purchases by purchasing

         14  agents in the various agencies, I think it's under

         15  25,000, is left to the discretion of the purchasing

         16  agent. So, bit by bit, either through lack of

         17  knowledge, or lack of concern for environmental

         18  stewardship, or lack of awareness, they whittle away

         19  through their ineffectual and lack of understanding

         20  of what could be done. And it is critical that these

         21  small purchases by the City, which add up to a

         22  monumental amount, not be left uncontrolled, that

         23  they follow the same rigor and the same guidelines

         24  that DCAS is supposed to follow, which also they

         25  don't follow.
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          2                 So, in summary, I truly wish you

          3  luck. I wish that these bills pass. I hope, Council

          4  members, that you are able to effectuate these

          5  changes and bring about a major increase in the

          6  stewardship of this City on environmental issues.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

          9  you all for coming in and giving testimony. And I

         10  know that, I think all of you were here since the

         11  beginning, so we got started about 1:15 and so we've

         12  been going on, and we have one more panel. I want to

         13  thank you all for coming in.

         14                 Steve, you indicated that Intro, I

         15  think 552, should stand up by itself and should not

         16  be connected with the others; is that what you said?

         17                 MR. BOESE: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I know

         19  that the staff have noted that and so it will be I

         20  guess considered whether or not it can and whether

         21  or not we'll move forward with that.

         22                 MR. BOESE: Okay, very good. Thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you, all,

         25  for coming in.
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          2                 Our next panel is Dennis Griesing

          3  from Soap and Detergent Association, and William

          4  Lafield from Consumer Specialty Products

          5  Association.

          6                 Thank you for your patience. Sorry

          7  for the late afternoon. I wanted to make sure I gave

          8  everyone the opportunity to be heard, and I'm going

          9  to also give you the opportunity to be heard.

         10                 So, please state your name and your

         11  affiliation and then you may begin.

         12                 MR. LAFIELD: Thank you, Chairman

         13  Jackson, Dr. Stewart. My name is Bill Lafield, and I

         14  am Vice President of State Affairs for the Consumer

         15  Specialty Products Association.

         16                 I'm here today to express serious

         17  concern about including disinfecting products in

         18  Intro. 552-A.

         19                 CSPA is a national trade association

         20  representing more than 255 companies engaged in the

         21  formulation, manufacture, distribution and sale of

         22  consumer and institutional products.

         23                 Our companies produce a wide variety

         24  of products, many of which are affected by this

         25  bill.
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          2                 I should add that our members include

          3  companies that produce green products and companies

          4  that produce the ingredients that make green

          5  products green. We have companies that have gotten

          6  the Green Seal certification and those that have

          7  not, elected not to seek the certification. So,

          8  whereas I had to check a box on opposition or

          9  support, I chose opposition because we are strongly

         10  concerned about one particular part of 552-A.

         11                 CPSA is concerned about disinfectants

         12  and disinfectant, the health risk that could result

         13  from restricting the use of certain disinfectants

         14  and disinfectant cleaning products in public

         15  facilities.

         16                 Disinfectants and disinfectant

         17  cleaning products play an important role in

         18  protecting public health, especially for high-risk

         19  population, such as the elderly, the very young and

         20  those with comprised immune systems.

         21                 The fact that the use disinfectants

         22  is mandated in many public settings such as food

         23  preparation areas, day care centers, and medical

         24  facilities provide ample evidence of the public

         25  health benefits that these products provide.
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          2                 While we recognize that the bill

          3  includes exemptions for purchasing disinfectants for

          4  food preparation areas and medical facilities, and

          5  that the green seal GS 37 standard excludes

          6  disinfecting products used to clean toilets, we

          7  don't think that these very limited exceptions are

          8  sufficient.

          9                 Controlling germs, bacteria and

         10  viruses on bathroom floors and hard surfaces, such

         11  as lavatory, showers, and baby change tables is an

         12  important part of protecting public health.

         13                 Disinfectants are highly-regulated at

         14  both the federal and State level, prior to any sale

         15  or use in the State, disinfectants must be

         16  registered by both the USEPA and the New York

         17  Department of Environmental Conservation.

         18                 To gain a registration, disinfectants

         19  must pass a series of efficacy and toxicity tests to

         20  document effectiveness against specific pests as

         21  well as demonstrating environmental compatibility.

         22  In fact, disinfectant products are among the most

         23  highly-regulated products on the market today.

         24                 But not all disinfectants are alike.

         25  To gain a registration, each product must
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          2  demonstrate efficacy for the specific tests, such as

          3  virus, strains of bacteria, et cetera, from which it

          4  claims to offer protection. To do this, the product

          5  ingredients will vary.

          6                 While certain ingredients may appear

          7  to be more environmentally compatible, they may not

          8  provide the needed protection against dangerous

          9  public health threats. Limiting the purchase of

         10  disinfectants because of general parameters imposed

         11  by non-governmental organizations broadly

         12  constructed standards, may well result in the use of

         13  less-effective products and an increased risk to

         14  public health.

         15                 Intro. 552-A would require

         16  disinfectants to meet all health and environmental

         17  requirements included in the Green Seal standard 37.

         18  But the standard itself specifically exempts most

         19  disinfectant products.

         20                 The only disinfectant products that

         21  are included in GS 37 are those that are also

         22  functioned as bathroom cleaners. Most of those

         23  disinfectant bathroom cleaners that have GS 37

         24  approval do not have the efficacy to eliminate many

         25  difficult -- to eliminate or kill organisms such as
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          2  those that are required to be killed by the

          3  Occupational Safety and Health Act, OSHA's

          4  blood-borne pathogen standard.

          5                 If this bill were to become law, it

          6  is probable that some disinfectants may be on the

          7  City's procurement list, but they may not be the

          8  right ones. There is no guarantee that the approved

          9  products will be effective against major health

         10  risks, such as HIV virus, Hepatitis A, coli,

         11  salmonella, tuberculosis and others.

         12                 The goal of minimizing the

         13  environmental impact of products purchased by the

         14  City is laudable.

         15                 However, any small gain achieved by

         16  limiting the types of disinfectants used in public

         17  facilities must be weighed against a very real

         18  increase in health risks.

         19                 And keep in mind that both the USEPA

         20  and the New York Department of Environmental

         21  Conservation, have already evaluated the

         22  environmental impact of every disinfectant before it

         23  can be offered for sale in New York.

         24                 For these reasons CSPA has provided

         25  the Committee staff with amendatory language that
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          2  would remove the references to disinfectants and

          3  sanitizers from the scope of Intro 552-A. We

          4  strongly urge the Committee to adopt these suggested

          5  changes and allow procurement officials to purchase

          6  the products that minimize public health risks.

          7                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          8  testify before you today.

          9                 I might add that I was originally

         10  going to be going by one of our member companies who

         11  has more of a technical background, who was unable

         12  to make it at the last minute, but we have provided

         13  you with a statement from that company Recket

         14  Benkeezer (phonetic) that makes the Lysol line of

         15  products, among others.

         16                 Thank you very much, and I'll be glad

         17  to try to answer your questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         19                 Dennis, do you want to introduce

         20  yourself and your association?

         21                 MR. GRIESING: Yes, sir.

         22                 Mr. Chairman, my name is Dennis

         23  Griesing. I'm Vice President of Government Affairs

         24  for the Soap And Detergent Association, a 100-member

         25  trade association founded in New York in 1926 and
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          2  resident here until 2000 when our Board decided to

          3  move us to Washington.

          4                 It's important, and we represent the

          5  formulators of soaps, detergents, general household

          6  clean products, industrial and institutional

          7  products, and we do share a membership with Mr.

          8  Lafield's organization. My members are also making

          9  green cleaners, Green Seal compliant cleaners.

         10                 I am here -- I hope to be your

         11  perfect last witness. I have no written statement

         12  out of concern for environmental efficiencies,

         13  because the first thing I want to do is to express

         14  appreciation of the industry, to the staff of this

         15  Committee and to the Speaker, for the considerations

         16  they gave to the scientific material we shared with

         17  them with respect to antimicrobial soaps. I think

         18  you've made a prudent and measured decision on that

         19  score.

         20                 Second, I just want to echo Mr.

         21  Lafield's concerns about what happens with

         22  disinfection. I was your typical American kid until

         23  I went in the Peace Corps and served in a tropical

         24  assignment in Brazil, and I came back a clean freak,

         25  because I saw what could happen with improper

                                                            176

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  cleaning and the lack of availability of effective

          3  cleaning products, and I'll just leave it at that.

          4                 Thank you for the time. I'll be happy

          5  to answer any questions you might have.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

          7  you both for coming in.

          8                 Dr. Stewart.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:

         10  Disinfectants. Apart from places like bathrooms and

         11  shower and maybe the floor, what other use that we

         12  can find to use?

         13                 MR. LAFIELD: I think day care centers

         14  is one where you have a lot of people together. I

         15  think the medical facilities are exempt but, for

         16  instance, jails, where you have a lot of -- any

         17  place I think where you have a lot of people huddled

         18  together where they share facilities, and

         19  particularly where there might be a risk of

         20  infection, particularly when it regards blood or

         21  things like that, I think that's where you would

         22  look for the use of --

         23                 MR. GRIESING: If I might amplify

         24  that?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes.
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          2                 MR. GRIESING: Last week we had a

          3  third -- cert celebration of a national contest that

          4  we sponsor cooperatively with the Center for Disease

          5  Control on Handwashing. We have an MOU with the CDC

          6  for this contest, it's for middle school students,

          7  and it has principally to do with handwashing to

          8  break the chain of infection, reduce absenteeism.

          9  But as part of that program, too, we talk about door

         10  knobs, other hardware, places where people touch,

         11  the germs are left, they're picked up.

         12                 The hand is the organ of transmission

         13  in many respects, but hard surfaces generally where

         14  there are people and you have the potential for

         15  disease transmission, you have to break that chain.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The reason

         17  why I ask that, you mention day care centers, but

         18  some of these products, in their chemistry they have

         19  byproducts that are carcinogenic or tha can cause a

         20  problem to children in particular?

         21                 MR. LAFIELD: You'd had to look at the

         22  specific products. By and large I think the products

         23  that are used in those probably don't include the

         24  stronger type ingredients that you were talking

         25  about.
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          2                 For instance, Lysol spray, which

          3  would be used very commonly, or even bleach which is

          4  a disinfectant used, probably would not have those

          5  ingredients, they would be the ones to be more apt

          6  to be used in a day care center.

          7                 If I might reply to something that

          8  was said in the previous panel regarding children's

          9  health, and particularly as it relates to asthma, a

         10  lot of the times the accusations are made that

         11  cleaning products are a major contribution, but when

         12  you really look at what's the proven causes of

         13  asthma and triggers of asthma, you find that the

         14  things that are listed are more like mold and

         15  mildew, dust, even insects and cockroach droppings

         16  and things like that are always mentioned as the

         17  primary causes of these things. And you look at our

         18  product mix, that's what our products are designed

         19  to counter. They're designed to counter mold and

         20  mildew, to clean up dust and to prevent insect

         21  infestation.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I understand

         23  what you're saying, but I haven't seen the studies

         24  that say that some of these disinfectants don't

         25  trigger asthma attack. I haven't seen a study that
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          2  would -- some of these products, I know if they've

          3  been used around certain people, children and maybe

          4  folks who might be somewhat allergic to some of

          5  these products, they can trigger an asthma attack.

          6                 The fact is, no studies have been

          7  done, as far as a lot of these products are

          8  concerned. And I was wondering if because of some of

          9  the carcinogenic effect of some of these products,

         10  if that cannot be a reason why they respond that

         11  way. And I'm not saying that mold and roaches don't

         12  really trigger an attack. They've been doing studies

         13  on those. But what about some of these

         14  disinfectants? Certain disinfectants, if you use it

         15  in this room, I start sneezing. If I was an asthma

         16  patient, it might trigger an asthma attack with me.

         17  So, I want to know if some of these products, there

         18  are no studies that I know of, and I want to know if

         19  that's not one reason why we should be looking at

         20  these products to see if we should be using much

         21  more biodegradable products?

         22                 MR. LAFIELD: Well, unlike most

         23  products, disinfectants have to undergo a very, very

         24  rigorous review of both their toxicity, their

         25  ingredients and their efficacy. So, you know, this
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          2  is done and this is a very extensive project that

          3  requires a lot of data that the EPA requires before

          4  they allow the companies to go on the market.

          5                 I mean, let's face it, it takes

          6  strong product sometimes for strong threats. Now,

          7  that doesn't mean that every product has very, very

          8  strong ingredients.

          9                 Also, for our institutional

         10  suppliers, they provide training and, you know, on

         11  the use of their products within the buildings and

         12  so forth. So, there are certainly instances probably

         13  where the product can be misused. But I think that

         14  by and large disinfectant products are probably the

         15  most thoroughly reviewed that you can find on the

         16  market.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, when

         18  you say reviewed, reviewed as to the toxicity to the

         19  environment, or reviewed in terms of efficacy in

         20  terms of destroying bacteria and viruses and things

         21  like that?

         22                 MR. LAFIELD: Both. And human health.

         23  It inquires inhalation studies, it requires efficacy

         24  studies and it requires toxicity studies which

         25  address all three of those areas.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

          3                 I have another question that's

          4  something that's been bothering me and I was

          5  wondering. Years ago the product DDT was being used

          6  widely for destroying mosquitoes and it has been

          7  used extensively in the developed countries, and

          8  then after awhile they stopped. But do we know that

          9  in some of the under-developed countries, Malaria is

         10  still a big thing, and they're still weighing now

         11  whether they should use DDT or not, and in the

         12  meantime a lot of young people, children, have been

         13  dying from Malaria. And I just wanted to know,

         14  looking at the problem with DDT, in terms of what

         15  they're talking about, whether it's carcinogenic or

         16  not, and whether you'll be able to save the lives of

         17  children if you're spraying the mosquitoes. Could

         18  you comment on that?

         19                 MR. GRIESING: This will be a personal

         20  comment, not from the Association.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         22                 MR. GRIESING: I lived in Northern

         23  Brazil 15 degrees below the equator. We were given

         24  several survival kits, medicines and household

         25  wares. In 1969 I was issued a one pound canister of
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          2  DDT dust by the United States government as part of

          3  my kit.

          4                 Several years ago in Boston at a

          5  hearing I heard a professor from the Tufts,

          6  Department of Public Health, say on the record, DDT

          7  is less harmful than some of the things we use to

          8  substitute for it. The only thing it really hurt

          9  were birds. The only time it really mattered was if

         10  you were born from an egg. But this is, the point

         11  you raise is a very important issue for the third

         12  world, and it's being debated widely. I know that.

         13                 MR. LAFIELD: I certainly wouldn't

         14  want to be in the position of defending DDT, but I

         15  am aware of the studies and the argument that is

         16  going on in the community about whether more lives

         17  have been lost through discontinuing DDT than

         18  continuing it.

         19                 On a much smaller scale, that's the

         20  same thing we're talking about here. We're talking

         21  about environmental benefit of a product that's

         22  already been examined for environmental

         23  compatibility versus the risk of not using that,

         24  which is unknown so we can't quantify it, so it's

         25  very real.
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          2                 I mean, there are some really

          3  dangerous things out there that the Centers for

          4  Disease Control and the EPA will tell you. And you

          5  know, I'm from Louisiana, and so I've been following

          6  the situation down there very carefully and I

          7  remember companies are donating a lot of

          8  disinfecting products. There's a lot of concern

          9  about health concerns and the proper use of

         10  disinfecting products.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Do you know

         12  if the federal government is going to be using DDT

         13  now that we have had so much water and water problem

         14  in Louisiana and those southern states, whether

         15  they're going to do that or at least prevent any

         16  outbreak of Malaria?

         17                 MR. LAFIELD: I have no idea.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you for

         20  coming in and giving testimony. And this will

         21  conclude the hearing on proposed Intro. 534.

         22                 I'm sorry, we're going to read some

         23  letters into the record, but we were discussing

         24  proposed Intro. 534-A, proposed Intro. 536-A,

         25  proposed Intro. No. 544-A, and proposed Intro. No.
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          2  552-A. I will turn to our Counsel of the Committee,

          3  Robert Newman, to read a couple of statements into

          4  the record.

          5                 Mr. Newman.

          6                 MR. NEWMAN: The statement of the

          7  Deidre Imus Environmental Center of Pediatric

          8  Oncology (phonetic) on New York City Council Intros

          9  534, 536, 544, 545, and 552 by Deidre Imus,

         10  President.

         11                 The Deidre Imus Environmental

         12  Center's mission since 2001 has been to identify,

         13  control and ultimately prevent the environmental

         14  factors that cause adult and especially pediatric

         15  cancer. One of the ways we have done this is by

         16  establishing our Greening And Cleaning Program.

         17  Greening Cleaning means eliminating or possible

         18  cleaning agents and chemical substances whose

         19  components include toxic materials and placing them

         20  with environmentally friendly, high quality,

         21  non-toxic cleaning agents.

         22                 Our comprehensive program guides

         23  institutions in establishing non-toxic cleaning

         24  programs from educational implementation.

         25                 Greening the Cleaning is now being
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          2  introduced to business and schools throughout the

          3  country and the New York metropolitan area. This

          4  includes the New York City Housing Authority, Newark

          5  Airport, and a dozen other places in New York City.

          6                 In short, more than 50 health care

          7  facilities and many businesses have implemented the

          8  Greening And Cleaning Program since 2001, with

          9  reported savings of 375 percent in cleaning costs.

         10  There are five main reasons clients choose our

         11  program. Toxicity reduction, cost reduction, space

         12  reduction and the products work as well, if not

         13  better than, the leading brands and all do the work

         14  for you.

         15                 Costs are not the only thing saved by

         16  using non-toxic cleaners. The USEPA states that

         17  indoor air quality is often five times worse than

         18  outdoors, and toxic cleaning products can contribute

         19  significantly to this figure.

         20                 New York's most vulnerable citizens

         21  are children who pound for pound body weight, take

         22  in more air, food and water than adults.

         23                 Unfortunately this means

         24  proportionately our children absorb more toxins than

         25  we adults.
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          2                 What's more, the USEPA reports that

          3  schools are four times more densely populated than

          4  office buildings. This presents us with a huge

          5  responsibility. More importantly, opportunity -- an

          6  important opportunity to do more for our children.

          7  After all, children are our most precious natural

          8  resource.

          9                 Governor Pataki asked me to attend

         10  his most recent State of the Senate Address and in

         11  introducing me, he announced that inspired by our

         12  Greening And Cleaning Program, he was issuing an

         13  executive order requiring all City agencies and

         14  authorities to begin using non-toxic cleaning

         15  products that are free of harmful chemicals.

         16                 We are also presently working with

         17  the Governor to support legislation A.8742 and

         18  S.5435 requiring all schools in the State, public

         19  and private, to do the same.

         20                 Conclusion: This is why we strongly

         21  support Intros 534, 536, 545, and 552, making these

         22  commitments to the City, to its workers, and

         23  especially to the children will ensure a healthier

         24  environment for us all.

         25                 Intro. 552, known as Greening Our

                                                            187

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  Cleaning Act will specifically make a positive and

          3  lasting impact on all who work and learn in our

          4  City's buildings.

          5                 As mentioned in the package of

          6  intros, the safety of workers and waterways alike

          7  are of utmost importance with our Greening And

          8  Cleaning Program, 98,800 pounds of toxins have been

          9  eliminated from the environment and no known

         10  work-related injuries have occurred while using our

         11  products.

         12                 In short, switching to safer, cleaner

         13  products using the least level of toxicity is one of

         14  the simplest, most cost effective steps New York

         15  City can take to make our buildings safe for

         16  everyone.

         17                 We will look forward to working with

         18  you to pass today's package of bills, especially

         19  Intro. 552. If there is anything we can do to

         20  provide you with support, or for more information

         21  about Greening And Cleaning, please call the

         22  Environmental Center at 201-336-8071. That is an

         23  amendment to that. While the Deidre Imus Center for

         24  Pediatric Oncology is encouraged by this important

         25  legislation, we would like to reiterate that we
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          2  believe it is important to include the requirement

          3  that the cleaning products be the least level of

          4  toxicity in Intro. 552.

          5                 In short, switching to safer cleaning

          6  products using the least level of toxicity is one of

          7  the simplest most cost effective steps New York City

          8  can take to make our buildings safer for everyone.

          9                 We look forward to working with you

         10  to pass today's package of bills, especially Intro.

         11  552. If there's anything we can do to provide

         12  additional support, or for more information about

         13  Greening And Cleaning, please call Environmental

         14  Center at 201-336-8071. Thank you for the

         15  opportunity to share this information with you.

         16                 There is one more statement. You want

         17  me to read it?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes. This is

         19  from the New York Industrial Retention Network.

         20                 Good afternoon. My name is Jenifer

         21  Roth and I am the Director of Research and Policy at

         22  the New York Industrial Retention Network.

         23                 NYIRN is a citywide economic

         24  development organization dedicated to a diverse

         25  economy that provides employment opportunities for
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          2  all New Yorkers by strengthening New York City's

          3  manufacturing sector based on principles of economic

          4  and environmental justice and sustainability.

          5                 The six pieces of legislation before

          6  you today are essential for the City to maintain its

          7  economic competitiveness in the coming century.

          8  Reducing waste, increasing use of recyclables and

          9  increasing energy efficiency will make New York a

         10  more attractive place to live and competitive place

         11  to work.

         12                 A commitment to sustainable

         13  development which include an emphasis on local

         14  production that will create new market opportunities

         15  for New York's manufacturing sector and help create

         16  new green color jobs.

         17                 The City's purchasing power is

         18  arguably its most influential economic development

         19  tool and focusing the power towards environmentally

         20  sound products will help shape the market.

         21                 Mandating the City to consider

         22  environmental criteria in its purchasing decisions

         23  will increase demand for green products.

         24                 There is no reason why New York City

         25  manufacturers can't produce these high-performing
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          2  products right here.

          3                 Recently with the support of the City

          4  Council, NYIRN and the Industrial and Technology

          5  Assistance Corporation released a report entitled

          6  "Building Green: New Business Opportunities for New

          7  York City Manufacturers," which detailed the link

          8  between green buildings and purchasing and healthy

          9  job creation.

         10                 NYIRN works with about 500

         11  manufacturing companies a year. The vast majority of

         12  these companies will not currently meet

         13  quote/unquote green standards, however, a public

         14  commitment for green procurement will certainly

         15  prime the pump and convince these firms that

         16  tweaking their products will be a worthwhile

         17  investment.

         18                 Several years ago NYIRN created Made

         19  In New York City, a marketing program to encourage

         20  New York businesses to buy products from New York

         21  manufacturers, thereby increasing sales and creating

         22  jobs.

         23                 Made in NYC includes an on-line

         24  database located at www.madeinnyc.org, and more than

         25  600 companies have registered for the program.

                                                            191

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 That website could be the

          3  infrastructure for linking New York manufacturers to

          4  markets for green products and facilitating local

          5  procurement.

          6                 It is conceivable that in a few

          7  years, Made In NYC would be synonymous with Made

          8  Sustainability.

          9                 We believe that a public commitment

         10  to sustainable development will both grow green

         11  manufacturing jobs in New York City and will make

         12  every business in New York City more competitive.

         13                 The New York Industrial Retention

         14  Network looks forward to working with the City

         15  Council to do so.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 And with that, this hearing is now

         18  closed.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 5:00 p.m.)
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